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Strategic Report

Ferrovial Airports International Ltd. (“Ferrovial Airports” or the “Group”) was incorporated on 11 June 2015 as the parent
company of a group of entities dedicated, but not limited, to the administration and management of equity investments
in airports. This Group was created as part of the Ferrovial S.A.'s (“Ferrovial™) corporate restructuring carried out during
2015 in order to focus the Group's primary international activities in a single subsidiary.

- Through this reorganisation, Ferrovial Airports acquired the following companies: Ferrovial Transco Chile SpA and Hubco
Netherlands, B.V., owner of 25% of FGP Topco Limited (Heathrow Airport) and Faero UK Holding Limited, which owns 50%
of AGS Airports Holding Limited {Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton Airports).

Ferrovial Airports is a subsidiary of Ferrovial International Ltd., which is part of the listed Spanish group headed by
Ferrovial, S.A.
In October 2016, Ferrovial Airports entered into the electricity transmission market through the acquisition of 65.94% of

_Transchile Charrua Trasmisién SA (“Transchile”), a Chitean company which owns a 204-km transmission line in the south
of the country. The remaining 34.06% was acquired, at the same time, by Ferrovial Transco Espafia, S.A.U. (former
Ferrovial Aeropuertos Internacional, S.A.U.), whose ultimate parent company is also Ferrovial S.A,

In 2017 Ferrovial Airports completed the restructuring process of the electricity transmission business by creating its
holding company Ferrovial Transco International UK, Ltd and including the remaining 34.06%, through two main
agreements:

¢ aShare Exchange Agreement between Ferrovial International, Ltd and Ferrovial Airports Intemational,
Ltd. involving the acquisition of the shares representing the entire share capital of Ferrovial Aeropuertos
Internacional, S.A.U. by Ferrovial Airports International, Ltd. The consideration for this sale was the allotment
and issuance by Ferrovial Airports International, Ltd. of 1,848,594 ordinary shares of €1 each with a share
premium of EUR 16,637 thousand.

o a Share Exchange Agreement between Ferrovial Alrports International, Ltd and Ferrovial Transco
International UK, Ltdinvolving the acquisition of the shares representing the entire share capital of Ferrovial
Transco Espafia, S.A.U. and the shares representing the 65.94% of the share capital of Ferrovial Transco Chile
SpA, by Ferrovial Transco International UK, Ltd. The consideration for this sale was the allotment and issuance
by Transco International UK, Ltd. of 8,311,689 ordinary shares of €1 each with a share premium of EUR 74,805
thousand.

In December 2017, the Great Hall Partners consortium, ted by Ferrovial Airports, has achleved financial closure of the
contract for remodelling and commercial operation of the Jeppensen terminal at Denver International Airport. Financial
closure comes after the signature of the contract between Denver City and County (the “City”) and Great Hall Partners
(the “Operator” or “Denver Great Hall") on 24 August 2017. Ferrovial Airports, with an 80% stake in the subsidiary, is the
majority partner of the consortium, alongside Saunders Construction and JLC (an investment fund created by Loop
Capital and Magic Johnson Enterprises). The construction and refurbishment work, worth a total of 650 million dotlars,
will be carried out by Ferrovial Agroman and Saunders Construction.

Management Review
Business Model

Ferrovial Airports Is one of the leading private groups in the airport sector, with four airports in the United Kingdom.,
Ferrovial Airports is the main shareholder and industrial partner of Heathrow Airport Holdings (FGP Topco), with a 25%
interest. Heathrow is the largest airport in Europe and one of the airports with the heaviest air traffic worldwide.

Ferrovial Airports also owns a S0% of the unregqulated airports of Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton {which are
grouped together under the AGS brand) and it is represented on the AGS” Board of Directors.

In both Heathrow, a requlated airport, as well as Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton, unregulated airports, Ferrovial
Airports seeks greater efficiency in operating costs and financial structure, developing innovative business solutions that
improve the passenger experience and bullds good business retationships with airlines. The Group measures these
objectives through the fotlowing key performance indicators, passenger numbers and profitability, as discussed later in
the business environment and financial review sections.
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The new contract for remodelling and commercial operation of the Jeppensen terminal at Denver International Alrport is
one of the first P3 airport transactions in the US and will allow the reconfiguration of the Great Hall to maximise its
commercial performance and channel a substantial passenger flow through a new alirside area.

Following the acquisition of Transchile in October 2016, the Group has diversified its business with the Incorporation of
electricity transmission.

The power transmission line acquired with the purchase of Transchile is 204 kilometres long, between the substations of
Charnia and Cautin, and is located in the regions of Biobio and Araucana in the south of Chile.

Ferrovial Airports decided to start the development of the electricity transmission business line as a result of its bidding
capabilities and know-how and experlence managing regulated infrastructure assets.

Value Creation

A strategy of having an integrated approach with the Construction and Services business of Ferrovial, together with the
experience in management and financing capacity of Ferrovial Airports, generate unique capabilities in tender processes
that differentiate the Company from other competitors such as infrastructure funds, airport operators or construction
companies. An example of this is the New Great Hall project of Denver International Alrport. Ferrovial Airports heads the
consortium awarded for remodelling the Jeppesen Terminal and managing the commercial area und Ferrovial Agroman
is the main responsible party for the remodelling of the terminatl.

Ferrovial Airports pursues the greatest efficiency in operation costs and the financial structure of its investments, together
with innovative commercial solutions. In 2017, the increase of passengers together with the strong faocus on operating
efficiencies have led to an increase In gross operating income of 4.6% in Heathrow. A combination of benefits from the
renegotiated NATS contract, the non-repeat of 2016 organisational change costs and benefits of cost efficiencies in
people-related, absorbed the cost increase of managing higher passenger numbers whilst maintaining service and
resilience. Furthermore the commercialincome also benefited from the depreciation of pound sterling, although this trend
has moderated since the middle of the year, and the redevelopment of Terminal S cuterlng outlets and Terminal 4°s luxury
retail offering, completed in late 2016.

The improvement in the gross operating profit of AGS in 2017 has been possible thanks to the increased passengers and
growthin commercial yield in all the airports. The improvement of the commercial yield is mainly due to the impact of the
Aberdeen terminal transformation project, the implementation of a passenger access charge in Glasgow and the new
terms of Glasgow’s National Car Parks (NCP} contract.

The refinancing of AGS was completed during the first quarter of the year, after its acquisition in 2014 which has led to the
optimisation of their financing structure, the extension of the deadlines and an extraordinary distribution among
shareholders of GBP 75 million.

Business environment
Airports Business

There has been a further growth in passenger numbers at a global level in 2017. Up untit today there has not been a
negative impact of Brexit on traffic and income from British airports. At the same time, investment in airport assets is
arousing greater interest and competition, with infrastructure and pension fund management companies being
Increasingly active.

Overall, the Group moves 93 million passengers per year. At the Heathrow airport alone, the Group manages 81 airlines
to almost 204 destinations. A total of 82% of passengers rate their experience at Heathrow as "Excellent” or "Very good®,
according to the Alrport Service Quality Survey by the Airport Council International (ACI.
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Passenger traffic:
Passenger traffic by airport for the year ended 31 December 2017:
Hhilions passengers [ Deewr " Dects  va
Heathrow 80 757 3%
Glasgow 99 9.4 5.7%
Aberdeen ' 31 31 19%
_ _Soithnmpton o 21 _ _2.0_ ; 6.1%
Totdd 931 901 34%

In 2017, Heathrow Airport handled 78 million passengers, up +3.1% vs. 2016 and had a record year. The traffic growth
was primarily driven by average load factor Intreasing by 2 percentage points to 78.0% (2016: 76.0%) partly reflecting
an increase in UK inbound demand, influenced by the depreciation of sterling, particularly from the Middle East and Asia
Pacific. The average number of seats per passenger aircraft rose 0.4% to 212.3 (2016: 211.5). The increase in the number
of flights reflects the immediate benefit of a scheme we launched in the fourth quarter of 2017 to boost utilisation of the
limited spare capacity which drove the net increase In flights in the final quarter of over 1,300 flights.

Traffic at Glasgow reached 9.9 million passengers (+5.7%) vs 2016. Domestic traffic was down (-1.1%) as a result of
reduced rotations to London Stansted partly offset by additional rotations on Flybe and Loganair routes in the regional
domestic market. International traffic increased (+11.5%) due to the growth in European traffic as a result of Ryanair’s
new routes which include Lisbon, Valencia, Palanga and Frankfurt, Jet2's new services to Dubrovnik and extra capacity
to Canaries, Alicante, Cyprus and Malaga. Long haul traffic has also increased reflecting a strong performance by
Emirates coupled with the new Delta service to New York.

Passenger numbers at Aberdeen reached 3.1 million (+1.9%) vs 2016. Domestic traffic increased (+1.3%), mainly driven
by the new Flybe’s London Heathrow route. International traffic increased {+3.2%), due to the growth in new teisure
routes including Ryanair’s new routes to Alicante, Malaga and Faro, Wizz's new services to Warsaw and Alr Baltic's new
route to Riga. This was partially offset by reduced rotations to international hubs (Parls CDG and Amsterdam) and a
reduction in Scandinavian passengers.

Passenger numbers at Southampton totalled 2.1 million (+6.1%) vs 2016. Domestic traffic Increased (+3.7%), driven by
additional rotations on Flybe's Manchester, Glasgow and Newcastle services, partly offset by reduced rotations on the
Guernsey route in the first quarter (including weather related disruption). International traffic increased (+9.8%) due to
extra capacity from the new routes to Amsterdam, Munich, Malaga and Cork.

Aimport tenders:

In 2017 Ferrovial Airports has been analysing mainly investment opportunities in the US,

Etectricity transmission business

The business of electrical power transmission presents growth opportunities for Ferrovial Airports, both because of the
significant investment in infrastructure expected over the coming years, and due to the different geographic areas in which
it will take place. The competitive environment positions Ferrovial Airports, as part of Ferrovial, as one of the few global
operators with capacity in engineering and construction.

Teanschite was founded in 2005 when it was awarded with the rights to operate and build a double-circuit 220 kV power
transmission line between the substations of Charnia (Bioblo region) and Cautin (Araucana). The line came into service in
January 2010. The transmission line is located near two large citles of the south of Chile and an energy cluster, with diverse
power generation sources.

Electricity t ssh g
In 2017 Ferravial Airports has been analysing mainly investment opportunities in Chile and Brazil.
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Commitment to Innovation

Innavationis one of the key elements of the value proposal. In the last year, Ferrovial Airports has launched a large number
of innovative projects:

+ Robird: a pioneerihg pilot project in the United Kingdom in which a drone in the shape of a bird, and which flies
like a bird, scares off birds that fly over runways, reducing the risk of contact in the landing and take-off of

aircraft and in general operations on airports sunways.

= Autonomous vehicle: at Heathrow Airport, pilot tests were carried out with autonomous vehicles for
transporting passengers and employees in its terminals.

«  Airport Centre of Excellence: in mid-2017, Ferrovial Airports signed a collaboration agreement as sole private
operator of the first Airport Centre of Excellence, launched by Lion & Gazelle. The aim of the center is to identify
trends in operation and technology applied to airports and develop innovative solutions and good practices in
the processes.

Community engagement:
Ferrovial Airports has a firm commitment to the sustainable growth of its assets and with its local communities.

Heathrowlaunched the ‘Heathrow 2.0’ sustainability plan, at the start of 2017, with the aim of reducing the environmental
impact of aviation while optimising growth opportunities in the United Kingdom.

In 2017, Heathrow launched the Green Car Scheme to encourage employees to change their car to a low-emission one
and became one of the first ten members of EV100, a global initiative to bring together the companies most committed
to the transition to electric vehicles. ’

Future Developments and Outlook

Over the next year Ferrovial Airports will continue to focus its efforts on its bidding activity and maximise the performance
of its assets:

+  Heathrow will continue with the development pracess of the third runway, which shoutd be approved by the UK
Parliament, together with different stakeholders (airlines, regulators and communities) as such a decisive
contribution for the British economy. Regarding the next regulatory period H7, the Civil Aviation Authority has
confirmed that a RAB-based remuneration model and single tilt will continue to be used, and the consultative
process on capital cost, inflation indexation or cost of debt will cantinue among other issues.

s ACS will continue to investin increasing the profitability of airports by expanding and improving the commercial
area in Glasgow and Aberdeen and also improving operating costs. '

«  Denver, whose remodelling works at the Jeppensen Terminal will begin in the second half of the year.

=  Transchile, consolidate operations after the restructuring process undertaken at the end of 2017.

The bidding activity at airports in 2018 will focus mainly on the North American market, with the opening of a new
commercial office in Austin to improve the knowledge and needs of this market and strengthening the competitive
advantages of the company. The bidding activity for electricity transmission will focus an Chile and other countries in South
America.

Ferrovial Airports is considering its conversion into a public limited company (PLC) and then into a sacietas europaea (SE).
It would subsequently transfer its corporate registered offices to another member State of the European Union (EU) in
order to remaln under the umbrella of EU Law. Sald transactions would be expected to be completed before the end of
2018. :

The directors expect no changes in the principal activities of the Company
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Risk management
Effective risk management

Risk is managed centrally by Ferrovial, SA, through the Ferrovial Risk Management (FRM) pracess to identify and assess
risk. The process is supervised by Ferrovial's Board of Directors and Management Committee and has been established in
all Ferrovial's business areas.

This process allows risks to be identified and assessed sufficiently in advance, based on the probability of their occusrence
and their potential impact on strategic business abjectives, including the potential impact on the Company’s reputation,
with the aim of taking the most suitable management and prevention measures based on the nature and the location of
the risk.

Through the application of a shared metric, two assessments are made of the identified risk. An inherent assessment, -
prior to specific control measures being implemented to mitigate the risk, regardless of its impact or its probability of
occurrence, and a residual assessment, after the control measures have been implemented. In addition to determining
the relative importance of each risk event in the risk matrix, this allows the effectiveness of the control measures
implemented for risk management to be assessed.

Ferrovial Airports is exposed to a variety of risks stemming from the nature of its business. The Company identifies and
evaluates appropriate control measures to mitigate the likelihood of the occurrence of these risks and/or their potential
Impact, implementing the measures proactively in accordance with the strategy objectives it has set forth.

The main risks to Ferrovial Airports international’s strategy are listed below:

e Strong competition in the markets in which the Company operates, that may affect the profitability and
value creation in activities focused on long-term projects both in the management of the current Airports of
the portfolio and in the bidding activity. As a response of these risks, the Company has a commercial committee
and an investment approval procedure to identifying and assessing the most relevant project risks

e  Brexit: after the United Kingdom Government submitted its formal intention to teave the European Union, the
exit process was formally initiated and a two-year negotiation period began to determine the new terms of the
UK’s relationship with the European Union. The final result of this negotiation process is subject to a high level of

- uncertainty that could adversely affect economics conditions in the United Kingdom and/or in the European
market as a whole, as well as contributing to instability in financial markets and global currencies, including
volatility in the value of the euro.

However, these estimates have been tweaked towards more optimistic outlook due to better economic data.
Heathrow airport Is the largest asset in which Ferrovial Airports participates In the United Kingdom but the
forecast for a potential stowdown or standstill in the British economy is not expected to significantly affect its
activity when compare to similar situations in the past In light of the relevance of the asset and its full-capacity
status. In addition, the decision of the British Government to move forward with the third runway project, pending
final parliamentary approval, hightights the importance that the airport has for this country and, therefore, its
lower exposure to this risk.

In the case of AGS airports, Ferrovial Airports will continue monitoring the developments In negotiations between
the United Kingdom and European Union and continue tracking the trends in the financial markets to take the
appropriate coverage measures.

¢ Business resilience: Assets, infrastructure, human and electronic processes or systems that may fail by accident
or deliberate act and this could negatively impact airport operations, passenger experience or the running of the
Airport as a business. To prevent and to cope if a critical service or operation is significantly interrupted for a
prolonged period there are recovery plans in place in the main areas of risk;

e Strategy, economic regulation and market changes: Changesin economic regulation, the aviation market or
the wider economy must be identified in order to influence the pace and direction of identified changes to prevent
them and to achieve relevant requirements or outperform regulatory price reviews;

¢ Safety and Security; The aimis to protect and safeguard the welfare and safety of staff, business partners and
the public who may be affected by the inherent risk of the activities that could result in injuries, disruption to
operations impacting revenue, loss of infrastructure requiring reconstruction, damage to our reputation, and
additional operating restrictions imposed which miay increase costs and Impact passenger satisfaction; and
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o Financial risks: The Group's businesses are exposed to different financial risks, most notably interest rate risk,
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, inflation risk and equity risk. Ferrovial Airports International's policies for
managing each of these risks are detailed below:

W

()

(i

{iv)

v)

Interest rate risk: Ferrovial Airports practices comprehensive asset and liability management, ensuring
active risk management and allowing it to optimise the cost of financing, volatility in the income
statement, the level of required liquidity and compliance with the obligations of the businesses. The
purpose of this management is to minimise variations in capital owing to mismatches between assets and
liabilities.
Exchange rate risk: Ferrovial Alrports holds investments in countries with currencies other than the euro,
most notably in pound sterling, as a result of this net assets are exposed to currency fluctuations. Most
contracts are denominated in the currency of the country in which they take place. Costs are typically
denominated in the local currency which provides a natural currency hedge.
Credit risk and counterparty risk: In managing risk stemming from the placement of investments in
financial products and the arranging of derivatives, Ferrovial Airports continually monitors the ratings of its
counterparties, establishing diversification criteria and minimum rating requirements for financial
counterparties.
Inflation risk: Most of the revenue from infrastructure profects is associated with prices tied directly to
inflation. This is the case of Heathrow and AGS airports accounted for using the equity method. Therefore,
a scenario of rising inflation would result In an increase the cash flow from assets of this nature.
Unlike the Company’s assets, from the accounting standpoint the derivatives arranged at Heathrow have the
objective of converting fixed-rate borrowings into index linked debt and are measured at fair value through
profit and loss, since they are considered to be ineffective derivatives. In this regard, an increase of 100 b.p.
throughout the inflation curve would have an effect on the net profit attributable to Ferrovial Airports (in
proportion to its percentage of ownership} by EUR -162 million.
Capital management: The Group's capital-management objective is to ensure its capacity to continue
managing its recurring activities as well as to continue growing in new projects, maintaining an optimum
relationship between capital and borrowing and thus create shareholder value.

In connection with the above mentianed financial risks, Ferrovial Airports implements derivatives to hedge and to protect
against the volatility of future cash flows against interest risk, foreign exchange rate risk and inflation risk.

Financial Review

milbon euros . | Oec7 | Dects var |
Net profit/ (loss) 100 (32 408.5%
Equity accounted results 89 (46) 294.8%
Distribution recelved from joint ventures and assodates ) 134 _724%
Net debt position ' o 65 U9 143%
Group equity 1291 125 2.8%
Net profit

In the year to 31 December 2017 the Group’s profit after tax was EUR 100 million (vs. EUR 32 million of net loss in 2016)
and included Denver Great Hall's net profit result of EUR 0,2 million after the financial dosure In December 2017,

10
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Equity accounted results

Heathrow and AGS contributed a profit of EUR 89 million to Ferrovial Airports’ equity-accounted results (vs. EUR 46 million
loss in 2016) and they are the main drivers for the Group's net profit.

Heathrow: Contributed EUR 87 million profit in 2017, versus EUR 57 million toss in 2016. This upside on the
result was mainly due to the positive mark to market performance of the hedging instruments in 2017 (EUR
169 million positive non-cash net profit impact) as compare with the negative impact seen in 2016, as a
result of an uptick in the expected inflation figure and the cutin interests rates.

AGS: Contributed EUR 2 million profit in 2017, versus EUR 12 million profit in 2016. This downside was
primarily due to the positive non-recurrent non cash item in 2016, due to changes in the pension plan
conditions (EUR 7 million) and the two percentage point drop in tax rate to 17% (EUR 6 million).

Distribution received from joint ventures and associates

With regards the amounts that have been received:

Heathrow paid out GBP 525 million to shareholders (EUR 153 million for Ferrovial Airports in 2017, +60% vs.
2016) which is significantly more than in 2016 (GBP 325 million). This included an extraordinary distribution
due to the good operating performance and the uptick in inflation.

AGS paid out GBP 146 million to shareholders (EUR 84 million for Ferrovial Airportsin 2017, +120% vs. 2016)
of which GBP 75 milllion resutted from a loan repayment following the refinancing carried out in the first
quarter of 2017, which led to optimisation of the finance structure, the extension of the maturity term and
the partial repayment of shareholder debt.

Net debt position

The Group's net debt decreased 14,3% from EUR 75 million to EUR 65 million, the main driver is the decrease in borrowings
from Ferrovial Group companies partially offset by the Denver’s new debt.

Group equity
The Group equity increased 3% from EUR 1.256 million to EUR 1.291 miltion mainly due to the increase In the net profit

of the year.

Director

Ignacio Aitos

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

Date:31 May 2018

1
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Directors’ Report

The Directars present their Annual report and the audited financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activities

Ferrovial Airports” activities include, but are not limited to, management and administration of equity investments in
airports and more recently electricity transmission.

" Areview of the progress of the Group’s business during the year, the key performance indicators, principal business risks
and likely future developments are containedin the Strategic report on pages S to 11.

Results ﬁnd dividends
The profit after taxation for the financial year amounted to EUR 100 million (2016:EUR 32 mitlion net loss).

As a result of the investment in Ferrovial Airports Denver UK and the restructuring process of the electricity transmission
activity the Company issued 2,271,297 shares including a share premium amounting EUR 20,5 million and a voluntary
reserve amounting EUR 0.4. million.

The Group did not distribute dividends in 2017.

Directors
The following individuals served as Directors during the year:

Jorge Gil Villén

Appointed on 11 June 2015

Business Administration and Law degree from Universidad Pontificia Comitlas-ICADE (Madiid). He is Chief Executive Officer
of Fercovial Airports division and Ferrovial Power Infrastructuse, He has been a member of the Board of Directors of
Heathrow Airport Holdings (HAH) since 2012 and serves on the management committee of the Ferrovial group.

Ignacio Aitor Garcia Bilbao

Appointed on 11 June 2015

Economics and Business Administration degree from Universidad Pontificia Comillas-ICADE (Madrid), and a PDD from
IESE. He is the Chief Financial Officer of Ferrovial Airports division and Ferroviat Power Infrastructure. He is responsible for
all the economic and financial aspects of the division. He also acts as Director for its innovation area and is also a member
of AGS’ Executive Committee.

Juan Butlén Alemdn,

Appointed on 11 June 2015 ‘ .
Law degree from Universidad Pontificia Comitlas-ICADE (Madrid) and Master's degree in Law from the Catholic University.
He is responsible for the legal department of Ferrovial Airports division and Ferrovial Power Infrastructure, supervising all
legal aspects of the division's activity and of its M&A projects, and is also a member of AGS’ Executive Committee.

Interests held by the Directors and the secretary

None of the Directors of the Company, or their spouses or children, have shareholdings in the Company at 31 December
2017.

12
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Going concern basis

Based on the information available, the Directors have the reasonable expectation that both the Group and the Company
have adequate resources to continue thelr activity in the foreseeable future and therefore that it is appropriate to prepare
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Further details on the going concern basis are detail in Note 1.4.4.
Political donations

-

No contributions have been made to political parties in the current year or the previous year.

Independent auditor

Deloitte LLP was appointed as auditor, have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and a resolution to
reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Directors' statement regarding disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

+ sofar as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is
unaware; and

« the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware
of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be Interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Beard.

lgnacio Aitor Garcia Bilbuc
Director
Date: 31 May 2018

13
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union.

Under company law, the Dire&os must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and falr view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that the Directors:

= Properly select and apply accounting poticies;

= Presentinformation, including accounting policies, in a manner that provudes relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

« Provide additlonal disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s ﬁnundnl
position and financial performance; and

= Make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose, with reasonable accuracy and at any time, the financial position of the Company
and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the UK Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and
otherirregularities.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board

Ignacio Aitor
Director
Date: 31 May 2018

14
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Ferrovial Airports Intemational Ltd.
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion ‘
In ouroplmon
¢ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairsas at
31 December 2017 and of the group'’s profit for the year then ended;
o the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intermnational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;
s the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance wnth IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and
e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Ferrovial Airports Intemational lelted (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries
(the ‘group’) which comprise: .

the consolidated and parent company income statement;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

the consolidated and company statements of cash flows;

the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
the accounting policies; and

the Group related notes 1 to 29 and Company related notes 1 to 15.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companles Act 2006. . .

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Aud|t|ng (UK) (ISAs(UK)) and appllcable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsnbllltles for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed is sufficient and
’ appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion. :

Conclusions relating to going concem
We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in‘respect of the following matters where:

e thedirectors’ use of the gomg concem basis of accounting in preparatlon of the financial statements is not

_ appropriate; or ‘

e thedirectors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for

© issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the mformatlon included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent othewvlse explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conc|usnon thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the ’
- audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statéments or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
mlsstatement of this other mformatlon we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the

_financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparatlon of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error. :

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a-.going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so. .

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detecta
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements. .

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those

matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a

body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report an other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements, '

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment
obtalined in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the
directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following mattersif, In our opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

+  certaln disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have notreceived all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Sl f 'De\eﬁ

Philip Doherty FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, UK

31 May 2018
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Consolidated income statement

Note| 2017 2016
. i

Thousands of euros ]
Revenue 2 19,488 1,593
Personnel expenses 3 (91D (299)
Provisions 489 -

Other operating expenses

4 (15706) (4,061

Gross operating profit/(loss)

3,360 (2,767)

Depreciation and amortisation charge

{2,478) (650)

Profit/(loss) from operations

882 (3,417

Net finance income

7 14,126 18,622

Share in profits/{losses) of companies
accounted for using the equity method

B 88,685 (45,522)

Profit/(loss) before tax

103,693 (30,317)

Income tax

o

(3,695 2,961

_Consolidated Profit/(loss) for the year

99,998 (33,278)

{(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to non-controllinginterests

Profit/{loss) for the year attributable to the Parent

(56) 878

v —— e [

99,942 (32,400)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

ek e I ST

(a) Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year 99,998  (33,278)
Attributable to the Parent 99,942  (32,400)
Attributable to non-controlling interests 56 (878)
(b) Items that will not be reclassified to the income statement (11,858) (73,010)
Impact on reserves of pension plans in joint ventures and associates (14,239} (90,015
Tax effect 2,381 17,006
(c) Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement (35,990) (185,677)
impact on hedging instrument reserves 11,034 14,245
Available-for-sale financial assets (551) 305
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (45,914)  (193,862)
Other 688 (90)
Tax relating of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified (1,247) (6,275)
{a)+(b)+(c) Total comprehensive income/(loss) 52,150 (291,964)
Attributable to the Parent ) _ 52,147 (294,147)
Attributable to non-controlling interests 3 2183
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Consolidated balance sheet

2016

Thousands of euros Note | 2017 .
Intangible assets 10 58,165 67,396
Investment in infrastructure projects: financial asset 1 36,362 -
_Property, plant and equipment 2 56,259 65,643
Investments in joint ventures and associates B 742,161 836,007
Non-current financial assets 14 ) 174,950 252,562
Deferred tax assets 18 1,339 1,634
Non-current derivative financial instruments at fair value 15 2,195 3,066
Non-current assets ' 1,071,431 1,226,308
Current trade and other receivables 748 748
Current income tax assets 7,387 4,813
Amounts due from Ferrovial Group companies 16 _ 287,234 111,251
Cash and cash equivalents 16 185,551 74,172
Current assets 480,920 190,984
TOTAL ASSETS 1552351 1,417,292
Debt securities and bank borrowings v} (234,109) (66,673)
Other payables - (@7
Deferred tax liability N 18 (4,321) (5,037
Non-current liabilities (238,430) (71,757)
Debt securities and bank borrowings 17 (1,683) (1,629)
Borrowings from Ferrovial Group companies 77 (14,331) (81,257)
Current derivative financial instruments at fair value 15 - (1,453)
Trade and other payables 19 (4,577) (4,244)
Current income tax liabilities (1,767) (124)
Operating provisions and allowances (286) (783)
Current liabilities (22,644) (89,490)
‘TOTALLIABILITIES o (261,074) (161,247)
. TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,291,277 1,256,045
Share capital 20 161,067 158,793
Share premium 20 644,604 624,139
Translation, hedging and Actuarial reserves 2 (235,561) (188,213)
Retained earnings 21 378,222 278,280
Merger Reserves 2 342,376 344,985
_Equity attributable to the shareholders 1,290,708 1,217,984
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 22 569 38,061
TOTAL EQUITY 1,291,277 1,256,045

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Ferrovial Airports International Ltd., registered number 09635449, were
approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 31 May 2018.

\f of the Board of Directors
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Consoltdnted stutement of cash flows

P —— e
Er t Thousands of guros ) R , - A m_ ]{ 2017 ' ‘420!677 _!
Cash flows from operating activities 23 219 200 134,804
Payment of income tax (4,939) (8,580)
Cash flow from operating activites L 215,261 126,224
Investment in infrastructure projects (24,667) (1,546)
Investment through acquisition of companies - (67,046)
Change in amounts due from Ferrovial Group companies ~  (194,569)  (111,167)
Cash flow used in investing activities (219,236) (179,759)
Cash flows before financing activities (4,975) (53,535)
Interest received _ . _ 1030 1,921
Interest paid L (5,396) (767)
Increase in financial debt L 175,270 68,302
Repoymentofbankdebt - (22,760)
Increase inborrowings from Ferrovial Group companies 10,732 81-168
Repaymentinborrowings from Ferrovial Group companies (68, 183) (15,880)
Cash flows from the issue of equity 4,355 -
Cash flows from related parties (i) o _ 280 2420
‘Cash flow from financing activities o 118,088 114,405
Net lncrense in cash and cash equivalents 113,113 60,870
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of year - 74172 17,285
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivolents _ (1,734) 3, 982)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 185551 7072

(i) This amount represents the net cash received from Ferrovial Airports International S.A.U. for the investment in
Ferrovial Transco Chite Spa in 2016 and the cash received from MJE-Loop Capital Partners LLC and Saunders
Concessions, LLC for the investment in Denver Great Hatl Holding LLC in 2016 and 2017.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

] 4 Translation | r ;

| ] ] Attributable

| smare . Share ‘:"" "Ic;" . Retalnad {} Marger An;:“u::u. tonon- Total Equity

‘ 1 "

Capitel z! Premium resecvas & | Earnings s Reserve Pacent cmsll::g
Thousands of euros 1 others. | A PU—
Note 20 20 21 21 a _ 22 ;
23(';'1:"“ at1January 158793 1,429,139 73,534 310,680 344985 2317131 - 237,31 .
Losses for the year - - - 132,400) . (32,400) 878) G3278)
—— — - e ———— —_———— —— - [
Other comprehensive ; ; esLn - . QLMD 3060 (258,687
Income and expense 1
Total comprehensive loss - (261,747) (24000 - (294360 2183 (291,964
recognisedinthe year L \ F :
Capitat reduction - (805,000 - - - (805,000} - (805000)
Minority interest on :
. . . - - - 35, 35,879
acquisition of subsidiary - — >879 . 58 :
g;;:““ ot3lDecember 158793 62,139 (188213 278280 344985 127,984 38061 126,045
Gains for the year - - - 99,942 - 99,942 s6 ' 99998 i
Other comprehensive " . (47.796) - . (47,796} (53) 47,849)
Expenses s, ——
Total comprehensive ' -
income recognised in the - - 47,796) 99,942 - 52,146 4 52,150
year o . L e
Capital Increase 2,274 20,465 447 - - - 23186 - 23186
Increase of awnershipin a . ; . 2608 (2608  B7495  (40,104)
subsldiary o . : ;
B B 3

Solonceat3lDecember 151,067 644604 (ZISS6D 22 32376 1290708 569 129,277
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Basis of presentation, accounting policies and scope of consolidation.
1.1 Basis of presentation

The consotidated financial statements are presented in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting applicable to the
Group, showing a true and fair view of its equity, financial position and results for the year. The accounting framework has
been established in the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by Regulation (EC) no. 160672002
of the European Parliament and of the Council of 19 July 2002.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except in the case of derivatives,
which are recognised at fair value.

The Group’s financial statements are presented in euros, rounded to the nearest thousands, except where otherwise
indicated.

1.2 Company activity
The Group consists of the parent Company Ferrovial Airports International Ltd. and its subsidiaries and associates, as detailed
in Note 26.

Through these companies, Ferrovial Airports performs its main activity, which includes, but is not limited to, management
and administration of equity investments in airports and more recently electricity transmission.

itis also important to highlight that two of the Group’s main assets correspond to the 25% stake in FGP Topco Limited, the
company that owns Heathrow Alrport in London (UK), and its 50% stake in AGS Holding Limited, the company that owns
Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton airports, which have been accounted for using the equity method since 2011 and
2014, respectively.

Ferrovial Airports Internationat Ltd. forms part of a larger group whose parent Is Ferrovial, S.A., which is listed on the
Spanish stock exchange.

1.3 Changes in the scope of consolidation

Below are the most significant changes with respect to last year in the scope of consolidation. .
Deaver Great Hall Contract Award

The contract for remodelling and commercial operation of the Jeppensen terminal at Denver International Airport,

between the City and Denver Great Hall, was signed on 24 August 2017. Ferrovial Airports, with an 80% stake, is the

majority partner of the consortium, alongside Saunders Construction and JLC lan investment fund created by Loop Capital

and Magic Johnson Enterprises).

This is a 34 year administrative concession, that meets the criteria to be considered within the scope of [FRIC 12 and it is

fully consolidated.

Financial closure was achleved in December 2017. The total investment will be financed by a combination of

governmental payments, equity committed by the consortium and a Long-Term-Fixed-Rate Exempt Facility (the “Series
2017 Bond). The equity provided by the consortium amounts to 68 million dollars, while the bond amounts to 189 million

dollars.

The construction and refurbishment work, worth a totat of 650 million dollars, will be carried out by Ferrovial Agroman
and Saunders Construction.

Acquisition of Ferrovial Transco Espaiia S.A.U.- Comparative information

As of 3 November 2017 Ferravial Airports International Ltd. ("the Transferee”) agreed to acquire the entire share capital
of Fercovial Aeropuertos Internacional, S.A.U. that Ferrovial International Ltd. (“the Transferor”) held in the Transferee.
The consideration for this sale was the allotment and Issuance by Ferrovial Airports International, Ltd. of 1,848,594
ordinary shares of €1 each with a share premium of EUR 16,637 thousand.
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As this transaction occurred under common control, it is outside the scope of IFRS 3: Business Combinations 2008 (“IFRS
3”). Accordingly, the Group has an accounting policy choice as how to account for this transaction considering which
accounting treatment is most useful and appropriate for the users of the accounts. The Group’s policy Is to prepare Its
consolidated financial statements using the principles of merger accounting, as set outunder FRS 102 Section 19 (formerly
FRS 6 “Acquisitions and Mergers”).

Under these principles, the Company has consolidated the balance, result and cash flows of this subsidiary as of 1
November 2017, which are shown below:

1st November 1st November
Assets (EUR Thousand) 2017 Equity and liabilities (EUR Thousand) 2017
Non-current assets 34,521 Equity 19,783
{nvestment in subsidiaries 33,166 Equity attributable to the shareholders 19,783
Defenred tax asset 1,355
Current assets 20,360 ' Current liabilities 35,098
Trade and other receivables 94 Current Liablilities 35,098
Current financial assets 20,266
TOTAL ASSETS ' 54,881 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 54,881

- The difference between the fair value of the consideration given, and the nominal value of the shares received in exchange
shall be known as a movement on other reserves in the consolidated financial statement, which amounts to EUR 2,608
million. There is no restated comparative for 2016. This has not been deemed necessary given the level of disclosures
included and therefore would have no impact on decision making by users of these consolidated Financial Statements.

1.4 Accounting policies
1.4.1 New accounting standards
1.4.1.1. Early application of IFRS 15. Revenue from contracts with costumers

‘ Although the new standard is not mandatorily applicable until 1 January 2018, Ferrovial Airports decided, making use of
the option included In IFRS 15, to early apply the standard effective 1 January 2017. This decislon has no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

1.4.1.2. New standards, amendments and interpretation adopted by the European Union mandatorily nppllcobfe for
the first time in 2017.

On 1 January 2017, the following standards which might have an impact on the consolidated financial statements came into
force in the European Union: Amendments to IAS 7, Disclosure Initiative, Annual Improvements to IFRSs, 2014-2016 Cycle
and Amendments to IAS 12, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses. No significant impact on the Croup
statements has been identified as a result of the amendments to 1AS 12.
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1.4.1.3. New standards, amendment and interpretation mandatorily applicable in annual reporting periods
subsequent to 2017.

The new standards, amendment and interpretdtion with a possible impact on the Group that have been approved by the
IASB and are currently not of a mandatory application are as follows:

: “ Obligatory application in
New standards, amendments and interpretations i annual reporting periods

! beginning on or after:
_Notyet applied but already appraved for use in the EU
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1January 2019

Notyet approved for use in the EU
Foreign Currency Transactions and 1January 2018

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Advance Consideration

IFRIC Interpretation 23 :::::1::‘: overipeometax. 1 January 2019

Amentments RS2 hare-busedpayments wansactons 10702018
Investment property ‘ 1January 2018

Amendment to IAS 40

Prepayment features with negative

AmendmenttolFRS9 _ compensation = ] ) _1 Jﬁﬂfmrv 2019
Long term Interests in Associates and

Amendment to IAS 28 Joint Ventures 1January 2019

2015-2017 cycle 1January 2019

Annual improvements

Plan Amendments curtailments and 1 January 2019
Amendment to IAS 19 settlements - v ]

Of all these standards and amendments, the ones that may have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements
are the [FRS 9 and IFRS 16 with the following expected impacts:

IFRS 9. Financial instruments: The Impacts identified are less important than those of IFRS 15, since the entities most
offected by FRS 9 are financial institutions. The mandatory application date is 1 January 2018. Set forth below is a
summary of the main impacts, following an analysis of the three phases of the standard:

() Hedge_accounting. The standard attempts to align hedge accounting more closely with risk
management, and the new requirements establish a principle-based approach. IFRS 9 generally
permits the designation of specific components of non-financial items and of financial instruments as
hedged items, provided that they are separately identifiable and reliably measurable and that there is
a liquid market for the items concerned (IFRS 9 B.6.3.8 et seq), and, in certain cases, it specifically
permits the hedging of the inflation component of certain financial instruments (FRS ¢ B6.3.13 to
6.3.15). In this connection, the Group has identified as a possible impact that relating to the index-tinked
derivatives arranged at HAH, which, as indicated above, could meet the requirements for hedge
accounting from 2018 onwards. The analysis of this impact has not yet been completed. The hedge
accounting requirements of IFRS 9 must be applied retrospectively. The impact of adopting this
standard will be disclosed in the Group's consolidated financial statements for 2018. This impact going
forward will depend both on the financial instruments held in 2018, on the changes in the economic
conditions affecting the valuation of those instruments, and on the specific results relating to the
effectiveness of the future hedging relationships. At the date of preparation of these consolidated
financial statements no adjustment on initial application has been calculated.
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i) lmpairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss model of IAS 39 with a model based
on expected credit losses. Under the new standard, the loss allowance for a financial instrument will be
calculated at an amount equat to 12-month expected credit losses, or lifetime expected credit losses if
there has been a significant Increase in the credit risk on the instrument. The Group intends to avail itself
of the simplified approach {(measuring the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses) for its accounts receivable relating to contracts with customers. To this end, in order to
implement this approach the Group has established a procedure which not only provides for the write-
down of accounts receivable when they are no longer recoverable {incurred losses), but also takes into
consideration possible expected losses, based on the evolution of the specific credit risk of the customer, -
its industry and its country. The estimated negative impact on equity attributable to the shareholders
as a result of the impairment of financial assets amounts to EUR 0.9 million.

) Classification and measuremeqt of financial assets. A new dassification is introduced that reflects the
business model within which financial assets are held by the company. No significant impacts are
expected to arise as a result of this new classification. The only potential impact for the Group relates
to equity instruments, which by defect must be measured at fair value through profit or loss, since at
initial recognition it may elect to present subsequent changes in the fair value of these instruments in
other comprehensive income. This election is irrevocable and is made for each asset on an individual
basis. Assets of this kind amounted to EUR 34 million at 31 December 2017. With regard to financial
liabilities, IFRS 9 does not introduce any changes with respect to IAS 39, except for the change In the
treatment of renegotiations of financial liabilities that did not result in the derecognition of those
liabilities. Nevertheless, no significant Impact is expected, since most of the Group's financial assets and
liabilities will continue to be measured at amortised cost.

IFRS 16. Leases: The analysis of theimpact of IFRS 16 is at an earlier stage than IFRS 9. The Group has determined that
the standard could have an Impact on the financial statements of FGP Topco. , however, its significance continues to be
evaluated.

1.4.2. Basis of consolidation

The Group's consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and of the entities it
controls (subsidiaries), which together comprise the Group at 31 December 2017. Control is considered to exist when the
Company:

s has power over the investee;

o  has exposure or rights to variable returns on its stake in the investee; and

« hasthe ability to affect those returns through power over an investee.

Where necessary, adjustments have been made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring them into line with the
Group's accounting standards.

All intra-Croup assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between Group
companies have been eliminated on consolidation.

The list of subsidiaries and associates is included in Note 26,
1.4.3. Accounting policies applied to consolidated balance sheetitems and consolidated income statement items

In line with Note 1.4.2 above, set forth below is a detail of only those accounting policies that were adopted by the
consolidated Croup in preparing these consolidated financial statements either as an option permitted by IFRSs or, as the
case may be, due to the specific nature of the industry in which the Group operates or the materiality of the policy
concerned
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1.4.3.1. Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on
which control is transferred to the Group.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

Fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree; plus

the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquire; less

the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess Is negative, a bargain purchase gain Is recognised immediately in profit and loss.

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those assoclated with the issue of the debt or equity securities, are expensed as
incurred. ‘

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes an asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at is acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date,

As of 3 November 2017 Ferrovial Airports International Ltd. agreed to acquire the entire share capital of Ferrovial
Aeropuertos Internacional, S.A.U. that Ferrovial International Ltd. held.

As this transaction occurred under common control, this transaction is outside the scope of IFRS 3: Business Combinations
2008 ("IFRS 3"). Accordingly, the Group has an accounting policy choice as how to account for this transaction considering
which accounting treatment is most useful and appropriate for the users of the accounts. The Group’s policy is to prepare
its consolidated financial statements using the principles of merger accounting, as set aut under FRS 102 Section 19
(formerly FRS 6 “Acquisitions and Mergers”). There is no restated comparative for 2016 as explained in Note 1.3.

1.4.3.2. Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets

o Afterinitial recognition, the items included under the headings “Property, Plant and Equipment” and “Intangible
assete” are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The Group therefore does not apply the fair value alternative with regard to property, plant
and equipment or investment properties

e  The straight-line method is used to calculate the depreciation and amortisation charge for the assets included
under the headings Intangible Assets and Property, Plant and Equipment.

The company Transchile Charria Transmisslén, as owner of the transmission line, applies the policy of “Property, plant
and equipment” recorded at cost less depreciation. Later costs such as ‘upgrades or improvements’, are recognised in the
initial value or as separate assets. Under the” intangible assets” heading the items include the rights of way which has an
indefinite useful life. After initial recognition this items are registered at cost less any impairment losses.

The years used by consolidated companles to depreciate each type of item included under the heading “Property, plant
and equipment” are as follows:

[ L , Years of useful life -]
Substations 30/40
Transmission lines T T T o
Mochineryandequipment e 3
Other property, plant and equipment ) _ o 7
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1.4.3.3. Investment ininfrastructure projects

This heading includes the investments made by companies holding infrastructure projects contracts, within the scope of
{FRIC12. .

IERICI2 financial asset model

“Investment in infrastructure projects ~ financial asset model” includes the service concession arrangements related to
infrastructure in which the consideration consists of an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset, either because the grantor guarantees to pay the operator specified or determinable amounts or because it
guarantees to pay the operator the shortfall between amounts recelved from users of the public service and specified or
determinable amounts. Therefore, these are concession arrangements in which demand risk is borne in full by the grantor.
In these cases, the amount due from the grantor is accounted for as a loan or receivable in assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. To calculate the amount due from the grantor, the value of the construction, operation
and/or maintenance services provided and the interest implicit in arrangements of this nature are taken . into
consideration.

Revenue from the services (mainly construction and maintenance) provided in each period increases the amount of the
related receivables with a credit to sales. The interest on the consideration for the services provided also increases the
amount of the receivables with a credit to sales. Amounts received from the grantor reduce the total receivable with a
charge to cash. The aforementioned interest in concession arrangements of this type is classified as revenue, since it forms
part of the ordinary concession activity and is earned on a regular and periodic basis.

Ferrovial Airports has the following concession arrangement:

CONCESION CONTRACT FIRSTYEAROF  ACCOUNTING
oPERATOR  COUNTRY TERM(VEARS) > ATUS CONCESSION(*) METHOD
' ggaver Great us 34 Construction 2017 Financial Asset

{*) First year of the cancession {if in operational) or year of commencement of construction (if at the construction phase}

Denver Great Hall entered into a Development Agreement (“DA") with the City on 24 August and reached Financial Close
on 21 December 2017. The City has granted the Operator will to design, construct, finance, operate and maintain certain
specified areas within the Jeppensen Terminal. The Development Agreement will be terminated on the 34™ anniversary
of Financial Close. {n addition to entering into the DA, the Operator signed a design and construction contract with
Ferrovial Agroman West, LLC (the “Contractor”}, who will undertake all design and construction work described in the DA.
Total project construction cost is estimated to be approximately USD 650 million. The project will be funded from the
proceeds of the issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds, equity contributions from shareholders and the followings payments
received from the City:

*  Progress payments during the construction period based on the consteuction progress for a guaranteed totat
predefined amount.

o  Supplemental payments, annual fixed amount on monthly instalments from project substantial completion
to project termination.

e  The Operator will have the exclusive right to enter into concession agreements with Concessionaries in the
Terminal and to collect Concessions revenues paid by such Concessionaries under a Concession Program.
The Concession Program will run from the date that the first concessions functional area is ready (expected
to be on May 2019) to project termination. These commercial revenues will be sharing between DEN and the
Operator of 80% and 20% respectively.

Construction an operating margin: construction risks are the responsibility of the Contractor, who satisfies the construction
before transferred to the developer. Since the Operator will merely act as an agent on the construction project, the
construction will be considered as incremental costs to satisfying the operation, and thus no margin will be registered on
the Income Statement for the construction activity.
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Commercial revenyes from Concessions: these revenues will not be included in the Financial Asset for the following

reasons:

Commercial revenues are not for guaranteed amounts and are subject to Concessionaires risk.
AFinancial Asset will be more reliable without commercial revenues and it will be better reflect real business
performance.

e Variable amount of revenue will affect the Financial Asset Model and require updating the IRR annually,
making the model less stable,

o Theinvestment could be covered by guaranteed fixed payments.

Deferred finanging cost: the financial result, incurred between bond issuance and the ending of the construction phase,
shall be capitalised, as they are directly attributable to the remodelling of the terminal and they will be included in the
cost of the asset. When the construction is substantially completed, it shall cease capitalising these costs and they will be
amortised during the concession period.

1.4.3.4. Other items on the balance sheet and income statement

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings with a maturity date are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless part of a fair value hedge relationship. Any difference between the amount
initially recognised (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings being novated or cancelled and re-issued
with a substantial modification of the terms, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial tiability, with any resulting gain or loss recognised in the income statement.

Loan receivables

Loan receivables are initially measured at the fair value of the consideration given plus directly attributable transaction
costs, and subsequently carried at amortised cost, recognising the interest accrued based on the effective interest rate.
This effective interest is the discount rate that exactly equals the initial payment for the financiat instrument with all its
estimated cash flows up to maturity. Nevertheless, loans on commercial transactions maturing in less than one year are
measured, both initially and subsequently, at the nominal value, providing that the effect of not discounting the flows is
not significant. At least at the reporting date, the necessary valuation adjustments are made for impairment when there
is objective evidence that all the amounts owed will not be collected. The amount of the impairment loss is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
Interest rate at the moment of initial recognition. Valuation adjustments and any reversals thereof are recognised in the
income statement.

The Company derecognises financial assets when the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset have been’
substantially transferred. In the specific case of receivables, this Is understood to occur if the risks of insolvency and default
have been transferred.
Fair value measurement
The Group only uses fair value measurements in the case of derivative financial instruments. In such measurements, the
credit risk of the parties to the related agreement is taken into account. The impact of credit risk will be recognised in the
Income Statement, except when the derivatives qualify as effective hedges, in which case they will be recognised in
reserves. The Group uses appropriate measurement techniques based on the circumstances and on the volume of inputs
avallable for each item, attempting to maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and avoiding the use of
unobservable inputs. In the measurement of the fair value, the Group establishes a fair value hierarchy which classifies the
input data of the valuation techniques used into three levels:

e lLevel 1: quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities.

¢ Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liabllity, either directly or indirectly.

o  Level 3: unobservable market inputs for the asset or liability.

As indicated in Note 15, Derivative financial instruments at fair value, all the Group's derivative financial instruments fall
into Level 2.
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1.4.3.5. Accounting for joint ventures and associates

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Company has jaint control, whereby the Group has rights to the
net assets of the entity, rather than rights to its individual assets and obligations for its individual liabilities. An associate
is an entity over which the Company exercises significant influence, but not cantrol or joint control. The results, assets and
liabilities of joint ventures and associates are Incorporated in the financial statements using the equity method of
accounting except when classified as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially
recognised at cost and the carrying amount isincreased or decreased to recagnise the Investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee is recognised in the
investor’s Income Statement. Distributions received from an investee reduces the carrying amount of the investment.
Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes In the investor’s proportionate interest in the
investee arising from changes in the investee’s Other Comprehensive Income. Such changes include those arising from the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment and from foreign exchange. The investor’s share of those changes is
recognised in other comprehensive income of the investor.

When potential voting rights exist, the investor’s share of profit or loss of the investee and of changes in the investee’s
equity is determined on the basis of present ownership interests and does not reflect the possible exercise or conversion of
potential voting rights.

1.4.3.6. Revenue recognition

Asindicated in note 1.4.1.1. on the first time application of IFRS15, the Group has changed its revenue recognition policies
to adapt them to the provisions of this standard, which has no material impact in this financial statements. In general, the
services provided in this business are short-term services to customers (airline or airport users) for which regulated revenue
is recognised at a point in time or an annual tariff for the availability of transmission line; therefore, there are no changes
with respect to revenue recognition for this business. It should be noted that the revenue from certain contracts that fall
within the scope of IFRIC 12 is recognised as described in Note 1.4.3.3. and is outside the scope of IFRS 1S.

Electricity transmission revenues are recognise in accordance with Decreto N°163 published in the Dlario Oficlal in Chile on

June 16, 2005, which adjudicates the rights of construction, operation and maintenance of the project, the winner is
entitled to recelve a tariff VATT (Valor Anual de Transmisién por Tramo) equat to USS 6,499 million per year, which
constitutes the remuneration of the project for a period of 20 years from the entryinto operation. After 20 years the tariff
VATT will be altered and subject to review every four years.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When the value of a receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable value, discounting estimated future cash flows at the instrument’s original
effective interest rate, and continues carrying forth the discount as a decrease in interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend income Is recognised as revenue on the income statement when the collection right is established. Nevertheless,
if the dividends distributed stem from profits generated prior to the acquisition date, the dividends are not recognized as
revenue but rather as a decrease in the carrying amount of the investment.

1.4.3.7. Taxation

Income tax income/{expense) comprises current tax income/(expense) and deferred tax income/{expense). Both the
current and deferred income tax income/{expense) are recognised in the income statement. However, the tax effect for
those items directly recognised in equity Is also recognised in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except for those arising from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of other assets and labilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting profit (or loss) nor taxable profit {or Loss).

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the Group will have taxable profit avallable in the
future against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from items directly
charged or credited to equity accounts are also recognised with a charge or credit, respectively, to equity.
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In accordance with the balance sheet liability method, deferred taxes are calculated on the temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount. However, deferred taxes are not recognised for
those arising from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and
affects nelther accounting profit (or toss) nor taxable profit (or loss) at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are calculated applying the tax legislation and at the tax rates approved or near approval at the balance sheet
date and that are expected to apply to the period when the related asset is sold or the related liability is settled.

Recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and the appropriate adjustments are
made where there are doubts as to their future recoverability. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are also reassessed at the
end of each reporting period, and are recognised to the extentit s likely they will be recovered through future tax benefits.

The Company forms part of the tax group headed by Ferrovial lnternationql Ltd.

1.4.3.8. Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the

results and financial position of each group company are expressed in euros, which is the functional currency of the
Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the Individual companies, transactions In currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (forelgn currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign cucrencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-manetary items that are meosured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the group's foreign operations
are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the perlod, untess exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences asising, if any, are recognised In other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as approgriate).

1.4.3.9. Disclosures

It should also be noted that in preparing these consolidated financial statements the Group omitted any information or
disclosures which, not requiring disclosure due to thelr qualitative importance, were considered not to be material in
accordance with the concept of materiality defined in the IFRS Conceptual Framework.

1.4.4. Going concern basis

The Group's business activity, along with the factors that could foreseeably affect its development, results and position,
are set out in the Strategic Report from page S to page 11.

The finandal and liquidity positions of the Group and of the Company are set out from page 18 to 22, Consolidated profit
for 2017 stood at EUR 100 million (EUR 32 million loss in 2016), while the net cash position (non-CAAP disclosure), which
inctudes cash and equivalents plus loans to Ferrovial’s Group companies less current and non-current borrowings, was
EUR 223 miltion (EUR 36 million in 2016).

Accordingly, Management considers that both the Group and the Company have successfully managed their risk by
maintaining adequate cash reserves and reviewing forecasts and actual cash flows.

Consequently, Management has therefore a reasonable expectation that both the Group and the Company have
adequate resources to continue their activity in the foreseeable future and therefore that it is appropriate to prepare the -
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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1.4.5. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Judgments;

it has been concluded there are no significant accounting judgments relating to these financial statements.

Estimates:

The Company has used estimates in the 2017 financial statements in order to appraise certain assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and obligations recognised therein. These estimates relate to the following:

e Estimates on valuation of derivatives and the expected flows related thereto to determine the existence of
hedging relationships (see note 15, Financial derivatives at fair value);

o The assessment of potential impairment losses on certain assets (see note 9, Goodwitl on acquisition and note
13, investments in joint ventures and associates);

o Projections of business pesformance that affect the estimate of a recovery of tax assets and the recoverability
thereof (see note 8, Taxation);

e  Estimates relating to the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in the business combinations detailed in Note
1 on changes In the scope of consolidation; and

e The assumptions used in the actuarial calculation of Uabilities for pensions and other commitments with
personnel.

The estimates are carcied out using the best information available at 31 December 2017 and 2016 on the events analysed.
However, it is possible that circumstances may arise in the future obliging them to be amended, which shall be performed
prospectively, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 8.

1.4.6. Exchange rate

Ferrovial Airports carries out transactions outside the Eurozone through various subsidiaries. The exchange rates used to
translate their financial statement for their integration into the consolidated Group are as follows.

Balance sheet itemns (exchange rate at 31 December 2017 and 2016 for the comparative figures):

Qosing exchange rate 2017 2016 T changewnser |
Pound sterling 0.8889 0.8545 4.03%
US dotlar 12022 1.0547 13.99%
ChiteanPeso 739.80 7057 e

{*} A negative change represents a depreciation of the euro agalnst the reference currency and a pasitive change represents an appreciation.

Income statement and cash flow items (average accumulated rates at 31 December 2017 and 2016 for the comparative
figures):

Average exchange rate [ o T 2016 v Change 17736 ) ]
Pound terling Cost osmo 632%
US dollar . m 11034 324%
ChieanPeso nn 7425 (0.64%)

(*) A negative change represents a depreciation of the euro agalnst the reference curnency and a positive change represents an apprediation.
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2. Revenue
The breakdown of the Group’s operating revenue for 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

: Thoustmdsof euros - 2017 2016 o

Revenue 19,474 1,587
Q_ther operating revenue 3 14 6
Totql qperqting revenue 19,488 1,593

Revenue relates mainly to the Denver Great Hall which reached preferred bidder stage in 2016 and to Transchile’s revenue
from the whole year. The Chilean company is entitled to a fixed annual remuneration equal to US$6,499,000, that is
adjusted every year according to US inflation, Chile’s inflation and the currency’s appreciation or depreciation.

The detall of the revenue by geographical market is as follows:

| Thousands of euros .. 2016
Chile 6,289 1,587
Spain 12 -
USA 7 13,187 -
United Kingdom 7 - 6
Total operating revenue 19,488 1,593

3. Personnel expenses
The breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows:

Thousands of euros o 2017 ' 2016 7
Wages and salaries (858) (274)
Social Security 5 7 (25)_
ToTAL | T e T o

The increase in the personnel expenses in mainly due to Transchile being included for a full year for 2017.

The average number of employees at 31 December 2017 and 2016, by professional category and gender, is shown In the
following table:

.. .3unnoy . 3ynnos

; Men Women " Total | Men ' Women  Total
Clerical staff - 3 3 - 2 2
Quualified professionals 8 2 10 4 1 S
Operational staff o 2 - 2 2 - 2
TOTAL 10 5 15 6 3 9

Theincrease of employees Is mainly due to the addition of Denver Great Hall.
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4. Other operating expenses
The breakdown of other operotlng expenses is as follows:

[Thousands of euros - . aww 16
Denver Great Hall expenses (12,900)

Rest of expenses B L (2 806) {4,061
Total other operating expenses {15,706) (4,061)

The other expenses relates mainly to Denver Great Hall which reached financial dose on 21 December 2017 and
represents mainly the costincurred during the negotiation of the Development Agreement.

S. Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Management
Remuneration of Directors

The key management personnel of the Group is defined as the Board Directors. The members of the Company's Boord of
Directors received no remuneration for performing their duties in 2017.

The Group has not assumed any obligations on behalf the Directors and no pension plans or insurance policies have been
taken out in that regard.

Remuneration paid to key management

Management duties are performed by personnel of Ferrovial S.A. No remuneration whatsoever is paid by Ferroviat
Airports International Ltd. or allocated by Ferrovial S.A for their duties In relation to Ferrovial Airports International Ltd.

6. AuditFees

Fees for the audit performed by the Group’s statutory in 2017 and 2016 are as follows

ﬁ'housnnds of euros 7 2017 T 2016 ]
Fees for auditing the company's fi nondol stotements S 98
Fees for auditing the financial statements for subsidiaries 93 62

_Total Auditing Services 191 148
Other services - Currency conversion of 2015 financial statements - 9
Total other audit-related services - 9

- o —t—— m—— o — [

7. Financeincome
Details of the finance Income/(cost) for 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Thousnnds of euros L o ?017 | 2016 j
Finance income from Ferroviol Gfoup compames o 179 1,508
Flnnnce_:__ncgmgﬂ)m Fesrovial Joint venture compomes s, 19512
Finance cost from external debt o ) @ 729) (2,_452)
Other__ - ey s
Resultsonderfvotnves - ~ 2,350 -
Financeincome B 14,126 18,622

Finance income from Ferrovial Group companies primarily includes interest received on the loan granted to Ferrofin, S.L.

Finance income from Ferrovial Joint venture companies primarily includes interest received on the participating loan
granted by Faero UK to AGS in 2015.
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Finance cost from external debt primarily reflects the finance cost of Transchie. The acquisition of the company was
financed through a loan of USS 74 million signed with Scotiabank Chile and Banco Sabadell.

The results on derivatives relates to the fair value of the sterling pound-denominated options, not designated as hedges
for hedge accounting, amounting to EUR 2.4 million.

8. Taxation

[Thousnnds of euros. - 2017 ﬁr—_ﬁﬂ—q
Current year - ' » ” i 2,877 {4,230
Adjustments in respect of priors years B - -
Corporation tax o (2,877 B (4,237)
Deferred tax 361 1,276
Adjustments in respect of priors years ~ {458) -
Totalincome tax (3,695) (2,961)

Since the Company forms part of the tax group headed by Ferrovial International Ltd. in Spain, the corporation tax is
calculated with the Spanish jurisdiction tax rate at 25% (2016: 25%) of the estimated taxabte profit for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The Group's income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would have been applied using the prevailing tax rate,
The recondllotlon of accounting proflt to tuxoble income Is as follows:

e ————— ——————— e+ o e e s e e e s s

L"‘°‘i“l"',’i‘?' ewos ___d ) 2017,, o
Profit /(loss) befora tax 103,693 (30, 317)
Spain’s corporation tax rate 25% 25%
Tax at Spain’s corporation tax rate (25,923) 7,579
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures and associates 22171 (11,381
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 57 841
incoma tax for the year (3,695) 2,961)

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised
in other comprehensive income:

[ Thousands of euros T 017 T 206 ]
ftems that will not be redass/fied mbsequently to profit or loss: -
Share of taxation recognised in other comprehensive income for joint ventures (620) 3,666
Share of taxation recognised in other comprehensive income for associates 3,000 13,340
o 2,380 17,006
ftemns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Taximpact on hedging instrument reserves 286 (5,927)
Share of taxation recognised in other comprehensive income for joint ventures (449 808
Share of taxation recognised in other comprehensive income for associatess (1,084 (1,156)
S e (6,275)
Totalincome tax recognized in other comprehensive income - 1133 10,731
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9. Goodwill on acquisition
The table below details the changes in the goodwill in 2017:

L‘lhoumnds of euros | 2016 | Adjustment  Cxchangerate 2017 J
‘ effect

.Goodwlllon acquisition B T

_Transchile . e . 545 (5,540) 39,926

Total 44,921 _.545  ___BSA0) 39926

In 2017 additional information was obtained that was not available at the date of the preparation of the consolidated
statements of 2016, which gave rise to an increase in trade and other payables due to events already existed at the dated
of acquisition of the company. The increase was related to penalties due to the delay in the start-up of the commercial
service of the transmission line. On 27 April 2016 Transchile paid penalties related to delay in the start-up of the
commercial service of the transmission Uine amounting to USD 1.7 million. This payment was provisioned during the years
2008 and 2009 and adjusted within the taxable income of the company. However to comply with the requirements
established under the Tax Legislation, the expense may be deemed as a disallowed expense, subject to a taxation levied
at 35% in accordance with Articte 21 of the Tax Law. In this regard, a tax burden for the 2016 period has been stated at
USD 0.5 million and the consequent increase in the goodwill recognised. Since the impact was not material, the
comparable information for 2016 was not adjusted and the changes are shown in the *Adjustment” column. '

Impairment test

Transchile is tested for impairment by discounting the future cash flow per the business plan, using the adjusted present
value (APV) methaod until 2061 and a perpetuity growth rate in line with long term inflation estimates in Chile and USA.
The Operational Free Cash Flow is discounted at the untevered cost of equity and the tax shield generated by the net debt
is discounted at the cost of the debt.

The main assumptions used to measure this asset for impairment testing purposes were as follows:

¢  Fixed revenue until 2030 (adjusted annually by US and Chile inflation)
¢ From 2030 onwards, fixed revenue reviewed every four years. Methodology set by law as the investment value
of the transmission line with a return given by the regulator for the whole industry.

The result of the valuation is higher than the carrying amount. Also sensitivity analyses were performed on the perpetuity
growth rate and the discount rate, so as to ensure that possible changes in the estimate do not affect the recovery of the
goodwill recognised.
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10. Intangible assets

The intangible assets are related to the goodwill arising in consolidation and the Transchile’s right of ways, these rights of
ways correspond to the necessary physical space needed for the transmission line (towers and wires).

No impairment losses were recognised in relation to these assets in 2016 after the impairment test carried out by
Transchile.

B 3} . : -

‘Thousands of euros ! Goodwill * Right of ways PPP;::::’W. " Total
Investment: Balance at1January 2016 ] ) ) }
On acquisition 42,197 20,790 - 62,987
Additions - - 1,685 1,685
_Effect of exchange rate 2,724 - - 2,724
Balance at 31 December 2016 44,921 20,790 1685 67,396
Balance at 1 January 2017 44,921 ) 20,790 . 1;68_5 T _6—7_,3_9Z
Transfers - - 1,685) (1,685)
Other S$45 - - 545

_Effectofexchangerate (554 @55 - (8,091

‘Batance at 31 December 2017 - - 39926 18,239 - 58,165

The PPP intangible assets, registered in 2016, amount to 1.7 million. This figure relates to capitalised costs in Denver
Great Hall as a resutt of entering into an exclusive negotiation for the public-private partnership to upgrade the main
terminal and manage the commercial area at Denver International Alrport. The deal structure of the DA, signed with the
City in August 2017, recognizes an unconditional contractual right to receive a determinable amount of cashin
exchange the construction and subsequent operating and maintaining the asset for a specified neriod of time. Therefore
this cost has been transferred to the Financial Asset in the balance sheet.

11. Investment in infrastructure projects
Financial Asset

. In August 2017 Denver Great Hall signed a concession arrangement with the City and it has been accounted under the
financiat asset model pursuant to IFRIC 12.

During the year 2017 the following amounts has been recorded as a part of the Financial Asset:

et ke i

';.Thousnnds of ewros : o 2017

Eorly designwork - ")
Total collections from the City ) - - (9 004)
Early design work - 9,004
Design work 3,972
Total design amount pald to the Contractor 12,976
Mobilisation payment 19,897
Total construction amount paid to the Contractor ) N e 7 .l 9,897
.Total payments to the Contractor an - ) a _ 32,873
O&M revenue (.m 4 ‘ ’ 12 493
“Total Investment in infmstructun pfojects (I+II+III) 36,362
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment corresponds to Transchile, these assets are related to the transmission line itself and
include the wires, transmission towers and the equipment of two substations.

The moln items are the wires, the transmission towers and the electric equipment, that belongs to the substations.

o o S T T T ’ﬁnchlnerﬂ Other ‘—_1
tand  SUPIMONTang | tangibte  Total |
Thousands of euros 7 equpment|| assets P
investment: Bnlonce atl Janunry 2016 - - - - -
On acquisition 68 61,844 7 363 62,282
Disposals o - - - @ @
Transfers o - 9 - s _(9)
Effect of exchange rate 4 3,884 1 132 402
_ galcmce at 31 December 2016 72 65,719 8 o 523 66,292_
‘Accumulated depreciation T
On acquisition - (153 - - (153)
Charges U ... NS B A ... )
_Balance at31 December 2016 - (646) (1 @ (649)
0] Replaced elements has been transferred as spare parts in other tangible assets. With new parts being
purchased for the substations and lines there was a transfer of old spare parts out of substations and lines
to other tangible assets. :
_— . e Tl e
Machinery Other
Land Substations. and | tangible Total
. and lines N
Thousands of euros . @quipment”  assets N
investment: Balance at1January 2017 72 65,719 8 493 66, 293
Additions . 1,003 2 2 1.00_7_
Disposals . - 977) - - (977)
Transfe,s - (490) - 0 -
Effect of exchange rate 9 (8 056) )] (60) (8,126)
Balance at 31 December 2017 63 57,199 9 925 58,196
Accumulated depreclation N IZ) T (649)
Depfeclation chorge for the year - 2,473) {4) ¥)] (2,478)
Dnsposnls - 977 - - 977
Effect of exchange rate - 213 - - 23
_Balance at 31 December 2017 - (1,929) (5) G a9sn
;Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 63 §5,270 4 922 56,259

v e —————
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13. Investments in joint ventures and associates
The Company accounts for the following companies using the equity method:

e  FGP Topco Limited (Associate): Consortium 25%-owned by Ferrovial Alrports International Ltd. which owns
100% of the share capital of Heathrow Airports Holdings Ltd, which in turn is the sote owner of the company
that operates Heathrow airport.

e AGS: Holding Limited (Joint venture): Consortium 50%-owned by Ferrovial Alrports internationat Ltd. and
50% owned by Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund, the sole owner of NDHL, which in turn holds 100%

of the share copltal of the companies thot opefute the Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton airports

Thousands of euros S T FGPTOPCO ~  AGS _ TOTAL

Equity at 1 January 2016 T 1m606 8899 1,221,505
(Loss)/profit for the period . 674060 11,884 (45522
_Impact of hedging instruments (6299 Bass) 9 743)»
Impact of Pensions ) (55,219 17,791 (73,010)
_Exchanges differences 1547880 87D  (155,659)
Dividends _ (101,960 - (101,960)
Other _ 490 (94) 396
Equity at 31 December 2016 L 837,424 o 1,417) ) 836,007
Profit/loss) for theperiod 86,618 2067 88685
Impact of hedging instruments 8,094 1,937 10,031
Impact of Pensions . _ _ (14,885 3,026 (11,859
Exchunges differences @370 (5%  B375M
Dividends _ ‘ (147,658) A (147 658)
Other n2 - 712
Equity at 31 December 2017 736,603 5,558 742,161

In view of the importance of these investments, following Is a detail of the balance sheet and statement of profit or loss

for these two companies, adjusted to bring them into line with Ferrovial’s accounting policies.

e  FCP Topco (HAH) Income statement:

(Thousandsofpoundsteding 7 200 | 20 |
HAH (100%)

OperatingRevenue : : 2883241 2,809,334
'Opemtlng profit ) o ) _ 1210 464 1,048,109:
Financialexpense B 7 ) 7 7 - . _—-—__ (?2792:) - (1,2_3@9_)
Proﬁt/(!.oss) bgforetox_ L 582,540 (183,030)
Income tax . (97,736) 69,894
Profit/(Loss) from continuing oparations _ L (484,804 (113,136)
Nat profit/(loss) - | 486,806 (113136
_Alignment of accounting policies (i) (181,621) (75,849)
Net profit/(loss) adjusted 303,183 (188,985)
25% ottributuble to Ferrovial (in thousands of pound sterllng) L _ 75,7?6 (47,246)
‘25%attrbutable to Ferrovial (in thousands of ewros) 86,618 (57,406)
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*  EGPTOPCO (HAH) Balance sheet

[Thousandsof poundsteding 2017 2016 )

HAH (100%)

Non-currentassets 17,300, 771 17,3‘05 403
_Current assets B 1, 001 678 1, OZS 484
“TOTAL ASSETS 18,302,449 18,370,887

Non-current liabilities _ _ 15608062 15,506,320
Current liabilities 1,771,442 1,881,000
“TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,379,504 17,387,320

TOTALNETASSETS T 922,945 983,567

‘totAaL equty o 922,945 983,567
Alignment of accounting policies () 1624,768) 43,147
Total Equity Adjusted 298,177 540,420
ZS% attributable to Ferrovial 74,544 135,105
Historic remeasurement at fair _vn!ug 25% (in thousands of pound sterling) (ii) 580,528 580,528
‘Equity attributable to Ferrovial 25% (in thousands of pound sterling) _ 655,072 715,633
Equity attributable to Ferrovial 25% (in thousands of euros) 736,603 837,425

() The alignment of accounting policies adjustment in FGP Topco relates to investment Properties. The Ferrovial Airports
Group accounting policy is that, after initial recognition, investment properties are accounted for in accordance with the
cost model as set out in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, cost less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated
impairment losses, whereas the FGP Topco accounting policy is to account for investment properties are accounted at falr
value.

(i) The 25% of the equity of the investee does not correspond to the carrying amount of the investment, since the carrying
amount also includes the amount of the gain arising from the remeasurement at fair value of the investment retained
following the sale of a 5.88% ownership interest in HAR in October 2011. The gain was recognised as an addition to
goodwill. Therefore, in order to obtain the carrying amount at Ferrovial, it would be necessary to increase the 25% of the
shareholders’ equity presented above (GBP 75 million) by the amount of the aforementioned gain (GBP 581 million), giving
a total of GBP 655 mitlion which, translated at the year-end exchange rate (EUR 1 = GBP 0.8889), gives the investment
of EUR 737 million.

e AGS Holding Income statement:
rThuuso.mls of pound sterling - ) "77426177; 2016 l

'AGS (100%)

Operating Revenue 209,423 197,095
Operating profit 123,888 75,931
Financial result B (50,446) (49,806)
Profitbeforetax T 1482 26,126
Incometex — 04766 3756
_Net profit o _ | 58,676 29,881
_Alignment of accounting policies (i} {55,058) {10,320)
AGS adjusted net profit 3,618 19,561
50% attributable to Ferrovial (in thousands of pound sterling) - 1,809 9,781
_50% attributable to Ferrovial (in thousands of euros)  _ 2,067 11,884
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[Thousands of poundstering AN
ACSA00%

Non-currentassets o 1,359,995 1,293,562
_Current assets o .. _31430 58,007
TOTALASSETS o 1397425 1,351,568
Non-current liabilities o o 1,151,878 1,173,138
Current liabilities e 46,677 46921
JOTALLABWLTES 1,198,555 1,220,059
TOTALNETASSETS - 198870 131,509
TOTAL EQUITY ] " Twepro 11509
_Alignment of accounting policies (iii) (87,400) 32,343)
TotalEquityAdjusted 111,470 99,166
50% attributable to Ferrovial 55,735 49,583
Acqulsitio_n adjustment (iv) (50,805) (50,805)
Equity attributable to Ferrovial 50% (in thousands of poundsterling) lo,9}Q . (1,222)

Equity attributable to Ferrovial 50% (in thousands of eusos) 5_.55_8 (1,417)

As regards the value of the investment, it was decided to recognise the possible project losses exceeding the carrying
amount of the asset, since as indicated in IAS 28.38, it is necessary to consider the overall exposure to the asset which, in
this case, includes a loan of EUR 253 million granted to AGS Airports.

{iii) The alignment of accounting policies adjustment in AGS relates to Investment Properties. The Ferrovial Airports Group

accounting policy is that, after initial recognition, investment properties are accounted for in accordance with the cost
model as set out in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, cost less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated
impairment losses, whereas the AGS accounting policy is to account for investment properties at fair value.

{iv) In 2014 a consortium owned 50% by Ferrovial Aeropuertos and 50% by an infrastructure fund of the investment
company Macquaire, entered into an agreement with Heathrow Airport Holdings (HAH), a subsidiary of FGP TopCo, for the
acquisition of Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton airports in the UK, through a newly-formed company catied AGS
Airports. The transaction completed on 18 December and entailed an investment by the Group of EUR 360 million, of
which EUR 50 million were disbursed in the form of capital of the newly-formed company and EUR 310 million were paid
in the form of a loan to the company that acquired the assets.

The 50% of the equity of the investee does not correspond to the carrying amount of the investment, since the carrying
amount also indludes the acquisition adjustment due to the elimination of the 50% of the EUR 51 million gain (the gain
was eliminated in proportion to the portion relating to the ownership interest acquired by Ferrovial) for the sale of AGS.
This adjustment will be reversed with the sale of the company.
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14. Non-current financial assets

This balance relates mainly to the participating loan granted by Faero UK to AGS Holding Limited, for GBP 244 million for
the purchase of the Aberdeen, Glnsgow and Southampton airports.

( Non-current loans to ,y, Others long terms Total non-cusrent 1|
Thousands of euros ! joint ventures . accounts receivable financial assets |
Balance at 1 January 2016 314,242 - 316,242
Repayment of loan principal T ousese . (18,656)
Exchange rate differences (43,024 - (43,024)
Batance at 31 December 2016 252,562 - 252,562

" Additions . 1 Y
Repayment of loan principal (68,039 - (68,039}
Deferred financing cost - 214 214
Exchange rate differences (9,788) - (9,788)
Balance at 31 December 2017 174,735 215 174,950

Changes in the balance at 31 December 2017 primarily relate to repayment of principal and Interest in the amount of EUR
82 million, less the capitalisation of interest accrued, totalling EUR 68 miltion, and the depreciation of the pound sterling
against the euro, which led to a negative impact of EUR 10 million.

The deferred financing cost correspands with the Denver’s finandial resutt, capitalised during the construction phase.

15. Financial derivatives at fair value

a) Breakdown by type of derivative, changes, expiry dates and main features
The table below includes a detail of the fair values of the derivatives arranged at 31 December 2017 and 2016, as well as
the maturities of the notional and cash flow amounts to which the derivatives relate (maturities of notional and cash flow
amounts ase shown as positive figures).

{“ o Fnlrvnlue S Notional matusities
[houwsandsofewss 2007 ~ 2016 20 | 203 | TOTAL |
Type of Instrument '
ASSET BALANCES 2,195 3,066 59,949 53,867 113, 916
Interest rate derivative 2,195 3,066 59,949 53867 1137816
" cash flow hedges 219 3066 59949 53,867 113816
"LIABILITIES BALANCES T o T 1483 - - -
‘Exchangeratederivatve - 1,453 - - -
cash flowhedges - w7 - - -
fairmlueheoye: - 656 - - -
NETBALANCES 2195 1,613 9,949 53,867 113,816
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Fairvalue } . Cash Flow‘mutuvrivt‘ieAs T ]
[Thousandsofeuwros | 2017 [ 2006 || 2028 ][ 2036 || TOTAL
Type of instrument
ASSET BALANCES 2,195 3,066 1,165 1,030 2,195
Interest rate derivative 2,195 3066 1,165 1,030 2,195
cash flow hedges 2195 3066 1165 1030 2195
LIABILITIES BALANCES - 143 0 - - -
Exchange rate derivative - 1,453 o -
cash f}bwhedges 797 . - -
fair value hedges 656 - - —
NET BALANCES 2,195 1,613 1,165 1,030 2,195

At 31 December 2017, the Group had an interest rate swaps, with a fair value of EUR 2.2 million and maturity dates in
2021 and 2036, in order to hedge the interest risk on Transchile’s acquisition loan of US$ 74 million signed with
Scotiabank Chile and Banco Sabadell.

b} Main effects on profit or loss and equity

The changes for accounting purposes in the main derivatives arranged by fully consolidated companies, detailing the fair
values thereof at 31 December 2017 and 2016, and the impact on reserves, profit and loss and other statement of financial
position items s as follows:

\
2017 2016 | Change Impacton | o
Thousands of euros 4 » reserves () |
_Type of instrument :
_Exchangeratederivatives =~ = - (1,453) 1,453 1,453 - 1,453
Interest rate derivatives 2,195 3,066 - (871 (87 (871)
TOTAL B 2,195 1,613 582 582 582

The changes in the year in the falr value of the derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in reserves.
¢} Derivative measure methods

All of the Group's financial derivatives are classified In Level 2 of the fair value measurement hierarchy, since although
they are not quoted on regulated markets, the inputs on which the fair values are based are observabte, either directly or
indirectly.

Although the fair value measurements are perfarmed by the Group using an internally developed valuation tool based on
best market practices, they are in any event compared with the valuations received from the counterparty banks on a
monthly basis.

The Croup applies hedge accounting. The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between
‘hedginginstruments and hedge items. The Group also tests its assessment, both at hedge inception and an ongoing basis,
of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of hedge items.

The Instruments are measured by quantifying the net future cash inflows and outflows, discounted to present value, with
the following specific features:

¢ Interest rate swaps: the future cash flows with floating reference rates are estimated by using current
market projections at the measurement date for each currency and settlement frequency; and each flow
isupdated using the market zero-coupon rate that is appropriate for the settlement period and currency in
question at the measurement date.
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e Foreign currency derivatives: as a general rule, the future cash flows are estimated by using the exchange
rates and market curves associated with each currency pair (forward points curve), and each flowis updated
using the market zero-coupon rate that is appropriate for the settlement period and currency in question
at the measurement date.

e Credit risk, which Is Included In the measurement of derivatives pursuant to JFRS 13, is estimated as follows:
In order to calculate the adjustments associated with own and counterparty credit risk (CVAs/DVAs), the
Company applies a methodology based on calculating the future exposure of the various financial products
using Monte Carlo simulations. To this potential exposure, a probability of default and a loss given default
based on the parties’ business and credit quality are applied, as well as a discount factor based on the
currency and applicable maturity at the measurement date. In order to calculate the probabilities of
default of the Ferrovial Group companies, the Credit Risk Management department assesses the rating of

" the counterparty (company, project, etc.) using a proprietary, rating agency based methodology. This
rating Is used to obtain market spread curves according to the currency and termin question {generic curves
by rating level). In order to calculate the probabilities of default of the counterparties, the CDS curves of
those companies are used, if available; otherwise, the CDS curves of a similar entity {proxy) or a generic
spread curve (by rating level) are used.

16. Cash and cash equivalents and amounts due from Ferrovial group companies
The breakdown of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

Thousands of euros o _ww T o
Shortterm deposits o 185002 0 23220
Bank Current accounts _ 30549 50,952
Cashandcashequivatents 185,551 74,172

Cash is managed in a centralised manner by the Ferrovial Group so the amounts due from Ferrovial group companies
include the balance of cash pooling accounts and loans that the Company has with other Ferrovial Group companies.

The breakdown of omounts due from Ferroviol group compumes at31 December 2017 und 31December 2016 is as follows:

{Thousands of euros ‘ ‘l oy 2016 )
Ferrovial Group- cun'ent occounts i o 14,997 1302
Loan to Ferrovial Group companies . ' 2z 98,226

Amounts due from Ferrovial Group companies T 287,234 111,251

17. Borrowings

The external bank debt is related to the Transchile’s debt acquisition through a loan of US$ 74 million signed with
Scotiabank Chile and Banco Sabadell

The bond debt is related to the issuance of the Series 2017 bonds and they are expected to partly fund the construction
costs for the Denver Pro]ect.

LThousnnds of euros o . B @17 o :_____ B _ 2_(116_ o
Bank-loan Transchile fi 57,471 66,673
Bond-Denver {ii) o 176,638 -
Non- current debt securities and banks borrowin—g's ) 234,109 _ _ - 66,673
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Thousands of euros D A T
Bank-loan Transchile 1,632 1,629
Other 51 -
Current debt securities and banks borrowings 1,683 1,629

- —— -~ —— - ——

The breakdown of Ferrovial Group companies loans and current accounts is as follows:

(Thowsandsofewos .. Wy e
Ferrovial Group-loan 858 77,582
American dollar (is) . _ 858 77,582
Ferr;waabdfp-current;c'cognt B . 13,473 _ 3,6;75
Poundsterling (v} 7,336 3297
Eurostv) 6137 354
Armerican dollar e - 24
Current borrowings from Ferrovial Group companies 14,331 _ 81,257

The non - current bank loans comprises EUR 68.302 million to Transchile from Scotiabank. This loan bears interest 7ate of the average of
six months LIBOR plus 0% and has final matusity at 30 September of 2021,

(@ The non-cusrent bond- Denver comprises EUR 177 million of the Series 2017 Bonds kssued by Denver Great Hall with an interest rate of S%
and final maturity at 30 September 2049.

(i) The cusrent Group-loans of EUR 77.582 million to Ferrovial Airports international Ltd. from Ferrofin with an interest rate of 2.06% was
mainly repaid in 2017.

v} The current Group-current account comprises EUR 7,336 thousand to Faero UK from a group relief. This loan bears interest rate of 1.04%.

M  The current Group-current account comprises EUR 3,157 thousand with Fecrofin with an interest rate of 0.38%, and a Group current
account EUR 2,980 thousand with Ferroviat Aeropuertos Espafia. This current accounts incurs an interest rate of 0.08%.

18. Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax Uabilities and assets recognised by the Group and movements during the current and
prior reporting year:

Deferred tax liabitities:
| _ ' i ;

Thousands of euros , Revaluation of assets i Others ; Total
‘Balanceat1lamuary2006 S L -
On acquisttion of subsidiary @172 . 772
Chargedtoincome statement 43 03
Exchange differences B . B o e o (308)i
Balance at 1]nnuoty2017‘- B o T (5,037 - (5,037)-
Charged/icreditedito income statement | 152 57 95
Exchange differences T ‘_t“ .". - --,_ o 618 3‘ 621
Balanceat31December2017 - (6,267 69 @320
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Oeferred tax assets:
| Toxcredits  raserves Rovnluﬂml of , Others Total |
Thousandsofeuros _ = mm”
Balnnce atl meuur_y 2_0}6_ o o - 4 990 - - 4,990
On acquismon ofsubsidary 1,745 20 n (710) 1,326
Chargedtoincomestatement B - - 60 1,233
Charged/(credited) to other compfehenswe income 198 5,989 _ 142) (5,927
statement o o ) ) T
Exchange differences - e 18 (6) 12
‘Balanceatl January 2017 316 (973 289 (798) 1,634
Onacquisltlon of subsidiary o (_»0_7 - - (132) 475
»(Credited) to income statement ) 874) - - 39 (914)
Charged to other comprehensive income statement - o 286 - - 286
Exchange differences _ (102) - 35 ()} (143)
Balance at 31 December 2017 ~ 2,747 (687) 254 (975) 1,339
19. Trade and other payables
[Thousandsofewos " 07 006
Trade Creditors o o o 982 )
Payables to Ferrovial Group compnnles i L o o ‘__‘3,522 3,855
VAT payable o __13___»_ L 8
Total trade and other payables 4,577 . h24b
Details of payables to Group companies are provided in Note 27, Related-party transactions.
20, Share capital and share premium
- - - . -_ - V. e R __\'
e No. shares . thousands |
Ordinary shares with par value of EUR 1 - 161 064 567 161 067
Shares subscribed and fully paid up at 31/12/2017 o _ _ 161 064 567 _ 161,067
Shares subscribed and fully paid during the period 2 271 297 - 2214
Shares subscribed and fully paid up at 31/12/2016 158, 793 270 158,793

The Company was Incorporated initially with a share capital of EUR 1 in June 201S. Subsequently, it issued a further
158,793,269 shares at a premium of EUR 1,429,139 thousand to its parent Ferrovial International Limited in exchange for
equity interests in the subsidiaries which now form the Group.

At 27 July 2017, the Company ssued 422,703 ordinary shares of EUR 1 at a premium of EUR 3,827 thousand to its sole

shareholder Ferrovial Internationat Limited. The payment was made by the transfer of USD 4,960 thousand in order to
transfer this sum to Ferrovial Airports Denver UK In exchange for equity in that company.
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At 3 November 2017, the Company issued 1,848,594 ordinary shares of EUR 1 at a premium of EUR 16,637 thousand to its
sole shareholder Ferrovial International Limited in exchanged for the equity interest in Ferrovial Transco Espaifa S.A.U,
owner of the remaining 34,06% of the electricity business.

21. Other Reserves

Translation, hedging and actuarial reserves indudes the accumulated amount in reserves of the valuation adjustments
made to pension plans, derivative financlal instruments and translation differences. This includes adjustments to
recagnise the Group’s proportionate interest arising from changes in the Other Comprehensive Income of equity accounted
Investments.

Translation differences are used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
Group compantes which do not have the euro as their presentational currency.

Hedging instruments below Include the fair value measurement of the derivative financial instrument that qualified as
effective hedges.

Pension plans: thisitem includes the impact an equity of actuarial gains and losses afising from adjustments and change
provision. The value of the provision is determined by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
transferrable to profit or loss.

Translation, hedging and actuarial reserves

- —— —— e e — e om . ————— — e i i i e vy

| T Valuatonadjustments T
'f 'Translation'  Hedging ' Pension © Others . Total
'Thousands of euros ’ ‘ differences instruments: plans - i
Balance at 1 January 2016 137,380 (14,2611 _ (51,448) 1,863 73,534
Movement from Group companies (40,203) 16,738 - - (23,465)
Movement from joint venture and associate (155,968) 9.743) (73,010 439 (238,282)
companies T
Balance at 31 December 2016 o _(s8,791) 7,266) (124,458) 2,302 (188,213)
Movement from Group companies (12,546) (818) - 449 (12,915)
Movement from joint venture and associate (33316} 10,031 (11,859 m (34,433)
companies T
Balance at 31 December 2017 (104.6_532_ 1947 (136311 3,462  (235,561)

Retained earnings and merger reserve

o T Retained - ’ Méfg.ffls.mﬂ :],
.Thousandsofewos . _eamings . C
Balance at 1 January 2016 —_ _310,680 344,985
Consolidated loss for theperiod (32,400) -
(Balance at 31 December 2016 _ 278,280 344,985
Consolidated profit for the period . 99,942 -
Increase of awnership in a subsidiary ) - 2,609
Balance at 31 December 2017 ) 378,222 342,376

The merger reserve arises on formation of the Group as at 1 January 2014 and the acquisition of Ferrovial Transco Espafia
SAU in November 2017, reflecting the difference between the net assets acquired and other capital and reserves items.
This reserve is not distributable.
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22. Non-controlling interest

At 31 December 2017, the profit and the share of capital attributable to non-controlling interests related to Oenver Great
Hall after the acquisition of Ferrovial Transco Espafia SAU to the Ferrovial Airports Group.

In November 2017 Ferrovial Airports completed the restructuring process of the electricity transmission business by
including the remaining 34.06%, through the acquisition of Ferrovial Transco Espana SAU.

v
|f

e e ——— e ——— e

Non-connolling interests i

RS -— — ==

; Increase of
Thousands of euros } Zovltt ownership | 2017
Transchile Chorruu Transmislén S.A. 34.06% (34.06%) -
Ferroviol TranscoChile SPA 34.06% B4.06%) -
Denver GreatHallLLC ~ 2000% 20.00%
Denver Great Hall Holdings LLC 2000% _ 2000%
S e — A - )
2017 2016 :
Thousands of euros S S
Opening non controlling Interests L 38,00 -
Non-controlling interest acquired (37,495) 35,879
Non-controlling share of profit and loss account _ 56 878)
Non-controlling share of other comprehensave Incame e and expenses {53) 3.060
Closing Non-controlling interest 569 38,061

C o —— c—

As this transaction occurred under common control, this transaction is outside the scope of IFRS 3: Business Combinations
2008 (“IFRS 3"). Accordingly, the Group has an accounting policy choice as how to account for this transaction considering
which accounting treatment is most useful and appropriate for the users of the accounts. The Group’s policy Is to prepare
its consolidated financial statements using the principles of merger accounting, as set out under FRS 102 Section 19
(formerly FRS 6 “Acquisitions and Mergers”). There is no restated comparative for 2016 as explained in Note 1.3.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has materlal non-controlling
interests is set out below:
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. ) S . 00

| _Denver Great

. Denver Great Hall LLC Hall Holdings

 Thousands of eros ) i LLoowe
Non-currentassets 36,576 -
Current assets ) ) 143,900 2
Non-current liabilities . i 176,638 -
Current Uabilities _ 994) )
Total Equity - 2,844 1
Equuyumibutabte tod\eshomholdm ‘2.275 1
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 569 0
Revenue o 13,187 -
Expenses . 12.902 )
Finance income - (1)
Profit/(loss) for the year . 285 (s)
Profi/lloss) attributable to the shareholders 28 4
(Loss)/profit attributable to non-controlling interests o (5 o 1
Total comprehensive income o}tv_lbutpbte toih_equfent 1,137 1
Totol.t;nprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 284 0
Yotal comprehensive income for the year 1,421 1
Net cash{outflow) from operating acthdties - - . 12,776) @
Nt cash loutflow)from investing activities - ' 23,630 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 172,827 S
Net cash Inflow 141,420 2

o ' 08

F Transchile Ferrovial [

i Chamia Transco :ﬁ
_Thousandsofeuros Transmisién, SA.  Chite SPA .
_Non-curent assets BS,A24 478
Curront ;ssm T - 40,058 11,095
Non-current liobilities N o L ) 1% -
Current liabilities Q5% 1852
Total Equity o 101,189 9721
‘Equity attributable 10 the shareholders - 66,720) (6,410
Equity mﬁbutn?;le to non-controlling interests - - -_30,706—5_— _‘ 3,_3!]
Revenue ) ] o 1,587 o -ﬂ
Expenses i 07 (760
Finance income - - Q,Z_SQT Y
Incoma tax B o ;1_ B - 2 o loSS
(Loss) for the year e 0,29
{Loss) attributable to the shareholders T 888) ®1)
(Loss) attributable to non-controfling interests o T wse) “20)
“Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to the Parent N - 4,695 “9%
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to non-controlling cntemts 2,425 59
Total comprehensiva income/(loss) for the year 7120 748)
Net cash inflow from operating activities T 1,235 -
Net cash (outflow} from investing activities - ) (34,6100 C T -
Netcoshinflow from financing octivitles ST T T30% 10471
Net cash inflow &1 10,471

——— e —— e —— - .
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23. Note to the cash flow statement

Areconciliation of the Company’s proﬂts and cash flow on operations is as follows:

[Thousands of euros - o 00 2016 |
Net profit attributable to the Pasent o 99942 (32,401
Adjustments for o . .
" rar — T g Tzea
— Non-contro([mg mterests _ S 56 87
Share in (Ias:es)/praﬂt of companies accounted for using the equ/ty method ' . 88, 685) 45,522
Finance income/cost L L 141260  (18,622)
Depreciation and amortisation charge o o 2478 650
Dtstrlbutlons received companies accounted for using the equlty method (Note 21) 21, %1_ L 94,280
{Increase) in accounts receivables N o B ) TIZ—IOQ) _ 2_,055
(Decrease) in accounts payables und Inventories (1,616) ) 1,218
Cush flows ffom operating nctlvitles 219 200 134,804 '

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arlsing from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilites arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
closslfled in the Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows frorn financing activities.

- - D —— -

anncmg Non-cash chnngcs—_- ) ﬁ -
Thousands of euros 2016 cash  foirvalue ' Exchange ‘ interest 2016
flows  adjustment differences | accruals ‘

8189 2637 235792

Non cunent debt securities and bnnk bmrowings (note 17) 68 302 173 042

Borrowings from Ferrovial Group companies (note 17) 81, 257 (59,589_) - Ba18) 2139 14,331
Interest rate swaps derivative fair value (note 15) (3,066) - 872 - - 2,195
Total liabilities from financing activities 146,493 113,453 872 (17,664) 4,775 247,928

24, Distribution received from joint ventures and associates

The Group considers cash flows from operations includes the returns obtained from its equity-accounted holdings
(dividends/capital returns).

Loumnds of curos o S __q T 7 . 2016
Collection of dvdends fomFGP Topco 147,658 96,116
Collection of interest/Return of participating loan ACS ) 83,903 o 38164
Dlst?ibution to shareholders o ) o — 231,561 T 134,280

25. Financialinstruments
Management of financial risk

Ferrovial Airports” principal finandal instruments (other than derivatives) comprise banks loans, borrowings for Ferrovial
group companies, cash and short-term deposits.

The Group also enters into hedging transactions, interest rate and exchange rate derivatives. The purpose of these
transactions is to manage the Impact of interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations.

The Group does not use financial instruments for speculative reasons.

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, particularly interest risk, forelgn currency risk, liquidity risk,
inflation risk and credIt risk. The policies adopted by the Group in managing these risks are explained in the Strategic

Report.
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The following give specific information on the Group’s exposure to each of these risks together with a brief description of
the management of each risk.

a. Exposure tointerest rate risk
Ferrovial Airports’ business Is subject to economic cycles and interest rate risk management is taken into consideration.
The strategy is achieved by arranging hedging financial derivatives, a detail of which is provided in Note 14, Derivative
financial instruments at fair value. The aim of these hedges is to optimise the finance costs borne by the Group. The
accompanying table shows the percentage of the debt that is considered to be hedged.

2017 .
(. 1
Bank Borrowings Thousands of euros Total gross % of debt Net debt exposed to
debt ____{{hedged interest rate risk
_ Transchite o 57,471 100% -
Denver 176,638 100% -
TOTAL BORROWINGS 234,109 100% -

Also, it must be borne in mind that the results relating to companies accounted for using the equity method include the
results cosresponding to the 25% ownership interest in HAH and AGS. HAH has a significant volume of debt, of which 93%.
is hedged against interest rate risk.

Each 0.5% change in interest rates would have the following impact in the JVs and associates before adjusting for the
alignment of accounting policies:

Millions of euros Net profit / ({oss) Equity atrib. to the
| parent |
0.5% increase ) 37 18
0.5% decrease ‘ 39 (18)

b. Exposure to foreign currency risk
Ferrovial analyses the changes In both short~ and long-term exchange rates, establishing monitoring mechanisms such
as equilibrium exchange rates, which, together with the planned net exposure per currency for the coming years both for
dividends recelvable and equity contributions in new projects, enables it to define its hedging strategy for their subsidiaries,
including Ferrovial Airports.

Note 1.4.6 contains a detail of the changes in the year in the closing exchange rates. As a result of these changes, the
impact of translation differences on equity at 31 December 2017 was EUR -46 million for the Parent and EUR -0.1 million
for non-controlling interests. Of the aforementioned EUR 46 million, EUR -42 million correspond to changesin the pound
sterling, EUR 9 million to changes in euros, EUR -13 million to changes in the US dollar, and EUR -0.4 million to changes
in the Chitean peso. :

Also, Ferrovial Airports has estimated that a 20% appreciation or depreciation of the euro at year-end against the main
currencies in which the Consolidated Group has investments would have the following impacts:

Millions of euros . ! Netprofit / (loss) l Equity atrib. to the |
— — N parent
Impact 10% appreciation of the euro 1 13
__Impact10% depreciation of the euro 4 9 (93)
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¢. Exposure to liquidity risk
The Group has established the necessary mechanisms that reflect the cash generation and need projections, in order to
guarantee solvency, in relation to both short-term collections and long term payments and obligations.

The tables below analyse the gross undiscounted contractual cash flows on the Group financial liabilities and assets as at
31 December to the contractual maturity date.

Mnturities )

f Fair Currylng A K ' - %
"value: amount 2018 | I 2019 2020 2022 2023 2024 2025 >2025 Total‘

Miltions of euros - .2017 2017 . | ey
‘Non - current financial assets _
Non-cusrent loan to associate 175 175 - - - - - - 175 - 175
Cashand Cash Equivatents 186 186 186 - - - - - - - 186
Bank Loan Transchile o §9 9 2 2 S5 - - - - - 9%
BondDenver 157 157 - - - 1 1 1 2 152 157
Total Borrowings 216 26 2 2 S8 1 1 1 2 152 26

d. Exposure toinflation risk
Most of the revenue from infrastructure projects is associated with prices tied directly to inflation, this is the case of the
prices of HAH accounted for using the equity method.

HAH is exposed to RP! risk on its index-linked bonds and derivatives held to economically hedge cash flows on debt
instruments and RPI linked revenue. In this regard, with all other variables remaining constant, an increase or decrease
of 100 b p through the mﬂutlon curve would have the following effects: '

- B e e T

} Millions of euros Net profit

Imboci‘increuse‘ofloo bp S o o 162 '(162)'
_ Impactdecreaseof 100bp 147 w7

* Equity atrib. to the
pnrent

a. Exposure to credit risk
The Group’s main financial assets exposed to credit risk or counterparty risks are as follows:

[Thousunds ofeuros I 2017 o : o 2_0—1]52
Cash and cash equivalents o _ 18ssSl 74172
Amounts due from Ferrovial Group companies ) 287 234 111,251
Non-current financiol assets 174,950 » —EZTS(:Z
Finonclal derivatives (assets) 2195 3,066
Trade and other recelvables o . 748 748

Total assets exposed to credit risk 650,678 441,799

The Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risks. The Group’s exposure to credit related losses, in the
event of non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments, is mitigated by limiting exposure to any one party
or instrument and ensuring onty counterparties within defined credit risk parameters are used.

The Group, through its parent company, Ferrovial, monitors the credit rating of derivatives counterparties on a regular
basis. As at 31 December 2017, the Group is not materially exposed to ccedit risk on its dertvative financial instruments.
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26. List of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The Ferrovial Airports Group’s subsidiaries are as follows. The percentage ownership corresponds to the effective values

of the shoreholdnng of the Parent in the SUbSIleIY All these compnnles are fully consohdnted

o e

%
: P
X Subsldnvy ship arent
NETHERLANDS legs:eted Address/Office: Klngsfordweg lSl. 1043 GRantetdom ND
Hubcol Niherlnnds 8 V B o _ 100% Ferrovial Airports International Ltd.
Ferrovial Santarern B.V. 100% Ferrovial Transco international UK Ltd.
Ferroviat Transco BrasA B.V. 100% Ferroviat Transco intesnational UK Ltd.
UK (Regntered Address/Ofﬁce Edmund Hu!l.ev Road, LK. OoX4 400)
Faero UK Holding Limited 100% Hubco Netherlands B.V.
Ferrovial Auports Denver UK Ltd. 100% Ferrovial Alrports international Ltd.
Ferrovial Transco international UK Ltd. 100% Ferrowal Airports international Ltd.
'SPAIN Regkméd Address/Office: Principe de Vergara 135,28002Madrid) i
Ferrovial Transco Espafia, S.AU. 100% Ferrovial Transco international UX Ltd.

UNITED STATES (Registered Address/Office: 24735 € 75¢th Avenue, SUITE 100, DENVER 0 80249-~6340)

Ferrovial Akports Denver Corp 100% Ferrovial Airports Derwer UK Ltd.
Fer_r_ov@ Airports Great Hall Partners LLC 100% Ferrovial Airports Derwer Cotp
0 ¢ Great Hall Holding LLC 80% ::govbl Altports Great Hall Partners

Denver Great Halt LLC "80% Denver Great Hall Hotding LLC
CHILE (Registered Address/Office: Nueva Tajamar, 481, Off. 1407, Santiago)

Fercovial Transco Ch:le SpA 100% Ferrovial Transco intemational UK Ltd.
Ferrovial Transco Chile il SpA 100% Ferrovial Transco Chile Spa

Transchde Charnia ;c_ansmsldn I -IBB—%_ " Ferrovial Transco Chll; gpcl B ‘Tu
Ferrovial Transco Chile 1§ SpA 100% Ferrovial Transco Intemational UX Ltd.

*1 1 share owned by Ferrovial Transca Chile B Spa

Activhy A

Holding company/ Alrports
Dormant
Dormant

Holding company/ Airports
Holding company/ Airports
Holding
company/Transmission

Holding )
company/Transmission

Holding company/ Alports

Holding company/ Air'p(_)rt_s_
Holding campany/ Airports

Alcports .

"Holding

company/Tronsmission
Holding
_company/Transmission
Electricity Transmission

company/Transmission

In addition, the Group holds interest in the following companies, which are accounted using the equity method:

}Jolm venlum and assodntu % ovmushlp Pareut

UK (Registered Address/Office: lek Row, Leeds. UK, LSl SAB)

AGSAiportHoldings Limited '50%  FaeroUK Holding Limited

AGS Airports investments Lim«ted 50% AGS Airport Holdings Lim umitcd

AGS Airports Limited . 50% AGSA«pons Imestmentsumed
Aicports Holdings NDH Limited S0%  ACSAwpodslimted

BAA Lynton Limited 0%  AuponsHoldingsNDH] Limited
UK (Registered Address/Office: Wide Lone SO18 2NL)

Southampton Intemational Airport Limited SO%  Airports Holdings NDHI Limited

'Ul( {Registered Address/Office: St Andrews Drive. Paisley. PA32SW. Scotland!

Glosgow An'port anilod 50% Akports Holdmgs NOH1 Lylitid_
K (Registered Addmleﬂlm' Dvce Aberdeen. AB2170U. Sootland) )
Aberdeen Intemonoml Anrpon Limited o So% Airports Holdings NOHL Limsted

. Holding company/ Aipom

Holding company/ Alrpom
Holding company/ Airports
Holding comparw/ Airports
Holding company/ Airports
Airports
Aiports

Akports

53



Ferrovial Airports International Ltd.

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements

Activity j

LJoint ventures and umicux % owurshp Parent
UK {(Registered Address/Office: The Compass Centre. Nelson Road. Hounslow. Middtesex TW6 W

FGP Topco Limited 25% Hubco Netherlands 8.V, Holding company/ Airports
ADIFinance 1 Limited ’ 25% FGP Topco Limited Hotding company/ / Airports
ADIFinance 2 Limited 25%  ADIFinance 1Limited Holding company/ Airports
_Heathrow Airports Holdings Ltd. 25% ADI Finance 2 Limited Holding company/ Alrports
Non Des Topco Limited 35% Heathrow Airports Holdings Ld. _I'Tofdnng company/ Alrpons
BAA (NDH2) Limited 25% Heathrow Airports Holdings Ltd. Hotding Et_x__mony/ Airports
Heathrow Hotdco Limited 25% Heathrow Airports Holdings Ltd. Holding company/ Airports
LHR Airports Limited 25% Heatm:w Haldco Limited ) Hotding company/ Airports
Heathrow Enterprises Limited 5% LHR Aj_rpons Limited Holding Egt_npunvl Airports
BMG Europe Limited 25% Heathrow Enterprises Limited Holding company/Airports
BMG (Ashford) General Pastner Limited 25% _Heathrow Enterprises Limited Holding company/ Airparts
Ultraglobal Limited 19% Heathrow Enterprises Limited ___ Holding company/ Alsports
"BMG (Swindon) Limited 20%  BMG (Ashford) General Partner Limited_Holding company/Alrports
BMG (Ashford) Limited i 25% _ BMG(Ashford) General Partner Limited  Holding company/Alrports
BMG (Cheshice Oaks) Limited "7 2%  BMG(Ashford) General Partner Limited Holding company/Alrports
BMG (Ashford) Partnership Trustco Limited 25% BMG (Ashford) Ceneral Partner Limited  Holding company/Airports
BMG (Bridgend) Limited 19% BMG (Ashford) General Partner Limited _Holding company/Airports
BMG (CO2) Limited _ 25% BMG (Ashford) General Partner Limited _Holding company/Airports
BMG (Swindon phases § & D General Partner Limited 5% BMG (Ashford) General Partner Limited  Holding company/Airports
BAA Partnership Limited 25%  LHRAirports Limited __Holding company/ Aiports
Devon Nominees Limited 5% BAA Partnership Limited Holding company/ Aiv Anrpom
The BMG (Ashford) LP 25% BAA Partnership Limited Holding company/ Aiports
The BMG (Bridgend Phases U and i) LP 15% BAA Partnership Limited Holding company/ Airports
_The BMG (CO Phase V) LP 5% BAA Partnership Limited Holding company/ Airports
The 8MC (Swindon phoses D& IO LP 18% BAA Partnership Limited Holding company/ Aiports ‘
BAA Geneml Partner Limited 25% LHR Z\irports Limited Hol}iing company/ Alrports
‘BAAPr Properties Partner Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holding company/ Aports
LHR Insurance Service Limited 5% LHRAirports Limited Insurance ]
LHR Building Central Services Limited 5%  LHRAirports Limited ' Holding company/ Airports
LR Business Support Centre Limited 5% LHR Airports Limited Holding company/ Alrports
BAA Lynton Management Limited 25% LHR Alrports Limited Holding company/ Airports
BAA Lynton Developments Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holding company/ Airports
LHR (IP Holdco) Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holding company/ Alrports
BAA Pension Trust Company Limited 25%  LHRAirportsLimited Holding company/ Airports
9G Rall Limited T 5% LHR Airports Limited Holding company/ Alrports
World Duty Free Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holding compmy_l_A_i_rports-
Alrport Property GP (No.1) Limited 25% _ LHRAirports Limited Holdng company/ Airports
Scottish Airports Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holdn;compnny/ Airports
Airports Hotels General Pastner Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holding _c:_:c__npiwj_ﬁfp&ni
) London Airports 1992 Limited . 25% LHR I-\—i;porE I_._If\ited Holdiﬂg company/ Alrports -
London Airports Limited 5%  LHRAiportslimited " Holding company/ Airports -
London Alrports 1993 Limited 25% London Airports Limited Holding company/ Airports
‘BAA International Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holding:oapanylﬁmorts
LHR {Hong Kone I(ong }Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holding company/ Airgorts
Heathrow (DSH) Limited 25% LHR Airports Limited Holding company/ Alrports
Heathrow Finance PLC 5%  Heathrow (DSH) Limited Holding company/ Airports
Heathrow {SP) Limited 25% Heathrow Finance PLC Holding company/ Airports
Heathrow (AH) Limited 25% Heathrow (SP) Limited Holding company/ Airposts
Heathrow Airport Limited 25%  Heathrow (AH) Limited Alrports
Heathrow Express Operating Company Limited 25% Heathrow Alrport Linted Raitway ———
UK (Registered Address/Office: 13 Castle Street. St Helier, Jersey JES SUT)
HeathrowFundingLimited " %%  Heathrow (SP) Limited Holding company/Airports
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27. Contingent liabilities, obligations and commitments

Guarantees

a) Guarantees related to Transchile
On 6 October 2016, Transchile signed the loan agreement granted by Scotiabank Chile and Banco de Sabadell S.A. Miami
Branch, for a total amount of US$74,085,158.
Transchile has provided the following guarantees over its assets in favour of Scotiabank Chile, The Bank of Nova Scotia
and Banco de Sabadell, S.A., Miami Branch:

Commerdal pledge and prohibition, which features in public deed grdnted on 6 October 2016 by the notary of

Santiago of Mr. Eduardo Avello Concha under public files N°30.319-2016, over the rights and/or credits owned

by the Company as recorded in the Awarding Decree N° 163 on 20 May 2005 of the Ministry of Economy,

Development and Reconstruction published in the Official Gazette on 16 June 2005;

Commerdial pledge and prohibition, which features in public deed granted on 6 October 2016 by the notary of

Santiago of Mr. Eduardo Avello Concha of N°30.318-2016 under public files, aver the rights and/or credits owned

by the Company under the following contracts:

(i} Connection and Operations Coordination Convention, “Convenio de Conexién y Coordinacion de
Operacidn®, entered into as a private document by the Company and Colbtin S.A on 13 June of 2013, and
the subsequent amendments; :

(i}  Connection Convention, " Convenio de Conexién”, entered into as a private document by the Company and
Transelec S.A on 1 July of 2008, and the following modifications;

(i) Operation Coordination Convention, “Convenic de Coordinacién de Operacién”, agreed through private
instrument by the Company and Transelec S.A on 1 July of 2008, and the following modifications;

(v} Lease Agreement for Trama E1 in Microwave Network of Transelec Section S/E Charriia an S/E Cautin and
use of the infrastructures “Contrato Arriendo Trama E1 en Red de Microondas de Transelec Tramo S/E
Charrda y S/E Cautin y Uso Infraestructura”, agreed through private instrument by the Company and
Transelec S.A on 1 June of 2008, and the following modifications;

(v} Agreement for the use of Physical Spaces and Comman use Facilities “Contrato Uso de Espacios Fisicos y
Utilizacién de Instataciones de Uso Comuin”, agreed through private instrument by the Company and
Transelec S.A on 2 June of 2008, and the following modifications;

{vi) Maintenance and Technical Operations Services Contract “Contrato de Servicios de Operacién Técnica y
Mantenimiento”, agreed through private instrument by the Company and Transelec S.A on 1 July of 2008,
and the following modifications;

First degree non-possessory pledge and prohibition, featured in public deed granted on 6 Cctober 2016 by the
notary Santiago de don Eduardo Avello Concha under the directory N*30.324-2016, over the rights and/or
credits owned by the Company currently devoted to the development of operating activities and businesses,
and/or that are required or advisable for the good performance and operation of the Transmission Line owned
by the Company, that connects the substations of Charria and Cautin (Nueva Temuco), not considering those
rights and/or credits under the contracts included in letter b);

First degree non-possessory pledge and prohibition, featured in public deed granted on 6 October 2016 by the
notary Santiago de don Eduardo Avello Concha under the directory N°30.321-2016, over the financial resources
deposited and/or to be deposited in the accounts that the Company opens and maintains opened with
Scotiabank Chile, under the credit contract agreed on 6 October of 2016, through public deed granted in the
notary of don Eduardo Avello Concha, excluding the “Cuenta de Pagos Restringidos” (Restricted payments
account} according to the legal terms founded in the loan contract; and

First degree mortgage and prohibition, featured in public deed granted on 6 October 2016 by the notary
Santiago de don Eduardo Avello Concha under the directory N°30.320-2016, over the property owned by the
Company registered at sheet 5,920 number 5.740 of the Land Registry of the Second Curator Immovables of
Temuco corresponding to the year 2008.
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b) Guarantees related to Denver

The following quarantee Is provided by Ferrovial International S.L.U., (external company to the Airports Group), to cover
the capital commitment relating to Denver Great Hall project.

Beneficia n Guarant { ount
fy company rantee purpose {miltions of euros)
Ferrovial Airports Great Hall . T
P LLC Equity Contnbutlgn 49

D ———— - —

Obligations and commitments

The capital commitment undertaken by Ferrovial Airports in relation to the shareholders equity of its project is a follows:

J— [ e - - Py "

i e armage e ey

2023 and
2018 2019 2020 201 2022 subsequent| TOTAL'
millions of euros L years ]
Ferrovial Airports Great Hall Partners, LLC 1 - 18 - - 30 49

28. Related barty transactions

The detail of balances with companies of the Ferrovial Group and associates at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as
follows:

L e e = o
[ 2om ;) i dus from JOpen-mng{ Operating ;. |

{ .! Lmtomnn‘; Fw Borrowings - Payables/(Receivables) | tocome | Expenses . pa
Thousands of euros — ~ i,_compenies S| e .
Fercovial, S.A. - Corporate - 23,929 147 1,983 - ) 105
FerrofinSL. ' o 254335 4019 T - - (730
Ferrovial Aeropuertos Espafia SA. - - 2769 1518 14 s W
Ferroviat Transco Espofia, S.A.U. - - < ) - - - - - 802
‘Ferrovial Intemational, LTD, . el - s e 1
Ferravial Internacional, SL.U. - 7.243 - e
Landmile Netherlands BV - 1 - - - - -
Cinlrolnlruswmnes. SE. - 91 - - - - -
CntaSewiclos - Mastrces autopistes - - 48 . o - -

407 Toronto Highway, BY. R T R
AGS Aiports Holding 174,950 . - T 14591
Ferroval Agroman Ul(l.tc; T - - 12 - ) - -
Amey UK Plc. e n -
Tt T - e -
Ferroval Agroman West, LLC I 2 .
Ferrowial Holding US M . o - as -
Ferrovial Airports Holding US Corp - . . 7 - 264) -
AMEYConsultingUSA . - . . T (134) .
TOTAL 174,950 287,234 14,331 3,522 14 (5.962 ) 14,770
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l ... V. - m ‘ ‘ ! i . Finence
L y Loamto ; Farotal . Bamvuiogs | Parebes/cetabed m,‘.w incoma?
Thousands of euros | . sompgnigs ¢ RO}
FerromlAeropuenosh(emdonuLSAU. - 34610 - I .= 193
Fercovial, SA. - Corporme . 1365 6l - _ - - 25
FerrofinS.L. L - 63641 77,651 . - - 1255
Ferrovial Aeropuertos Espafia S.A. - - 248 3834 6 Bu -
Ferrovial International, LTD. - 1,634 - - - - 36
Ferrovial nternacional, SLU. - - - - - - -
407 Toconto Highway, BV - oo - T &
Landmitie Netherlands BV - 1 - ' - - -
AGS Airports Holding 252,562 - - 6 - _1_9_ S12
Tax Group Relief - - 3,297 - - - -
TOTAL 252,562 111,251 81,257 3,855 [} (3,159) 21,021

29. Immediate and ultimate parent companies
The immediate parent company and contralling party of Ferrovial Airports International Ltd. Is Ferrovial International Ltd.

The parent undertaking of the smallest such group in which these financial statements are consolidated within is
Ferrovial Airports Internationat Ltd. a company incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and

Wales.

The ultimate parent and the largest group in which these financial statements are consolidated within is Ferrovial, S.A.,

whose corporate headquarters are in Spain.

Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Ferrovial, S.A. can be obtained from:

Ferrovial, S.A.
Registered office:
Principe de Vergara, 135
28002 Madrid

Spain

57



Ferrovial Airports International Ltd.

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2017 Standalone Financial Statements

Company income statement

| Thousands of euras _ Note 2017 } 206
Revenue o 2 315,000 6
Personnelexpenses . . 3 (108) (106)
Other operating expenses o R 4 (1,295) (1,438)
Grass operating loss , o 313,597 (1,538}
Profit from operations ) ‘ 313,597 (1,538)
Net finance income / (expenses) ‘ 5 ' 8,152 (3,108)
(Loss)/profitbeforetax | 321,749 (4,646)
Income tax o ‘ 6 {1,675 1,149

(Loss)/profit for the year | ' 320,074 3,497

There are no recognised gains or losses other than those passing through the income statement. Consequently no

separate statement of other comprehensive iIncome has been presented.
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Company balance sheet

Thousands of euros . Note } 2017 | 2016
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 7 874,077 855,814
Non-current assets 874,077 855,814
Amounts due from Ferrovial Group companies - 8 254,555 1,661
£u|:reht trade and other receivables - 2
Currentincome tax assets 359 1,169
Cash and equivalents - -
Current assets 254,914 2,832
'TOTAL ASSETS 1,128,991 858,645,
Borrowings from Ferrovial Group companies 9 (3,396) (77,867
Trade and other payables 10 (1,212) (1,329)
Current income tax liabilities {1,675) -
Current liabilities (6,283) (79,196)
[TOTAL LIABILITES . : 09196
. TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,122,708 779,449
Share capital 1n 161,067 158,793
Share premium ) 1 644,604 624,139
Retained earnings and other reserves 11 317,037 (3,484)
_TOTAL EQUITY 1,122,708 779,448 f

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Ferroviat Airports International Ltd., registered number 09635449, were

approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 31 May 2018.
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Company statement of changes in equity e
rP ' ‘ Share r Share | Other Retained “ Total
Thousands of eros _ . capital  premium ;| Reserves & eamings = equity
Note n n Y 1
Balanceat1January2016 158,793 1,429,139 - % 1,587,947
Loss and total comprehensiveloss - - “ @5 (497
Capital reduction T . (805,000 - 0 (805,000)
Balance at 31 December 2016 158,793 624,139 14 3,497 779,449
Profit and total comprehensive income o - - - 320,074 320,074
Copitalincrease L2204 20465 447 - B
Balance at 31 December 2017 161,067 644,604 461 316,576 1,122,709

Company statement of cash flows

[ Thousands of ewros (Note | 200 206
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities _—:: : o . 64116 ~ (514)
Collection/(payment) of income tax - j 992 0B
Total cash flow from/(used in) operating activities o 65,708 (519)
“Investment through acquisition of companies - o —i::_j_ (6?_,1_53)_‘
Cash flow from/(used in} investments ) o 4,970 -
Change in amounts due from Fersovial Group ¢ compcmles o (4322) 1,605
Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 648 (70,758)

" Cash flows before financing activities 66,356 (71,277
Interest (paid)/received — Y
Increase in borrowings from Ferrovial Group companies 3,097 77,847
Rep&\—/r_ﬁemdr?owﬁg;f_rom Ferrovial Group companies e Q0
Cash flows from/(used in) shareholders and non- controlllng mterests o - (3,511
Cash flow from/(used in} financing activities (66,356) 75,490
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents o 4213

"Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of year o ‘ - 18
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - (4,23

Cash and cash equivalentsatend ofyear - -
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Notes to the Company’s 2017 Financial Statements

1. Accountingpolicies

The accompanying financial statements were obtained from the Company’s accounting records and are presented in
accordance with the applicable regulatory financial reporting framewaork, to present a true and fair view of the Company’s
equity, financial position and results for the year. The regulatory framework is that established under International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) established by Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of
the Councit of 19 July 2002.

Since 2015, the Company files consolidated tax returns as part of the consolidated Spanish tax group headed by Ferrovial,
S.A.

The main accounting principles applied are those indicated in Note 1 for the preparation of the consotidated Group's
financial statements.

2. Revenue
The breakdown of the opemtlng revenue for 2017 and 2016 is as follows

Thoﬁsnnydspfeuros L o ﬂ‘ 207 H 20“’

Total operating revenue 315,000 ) _ g )

The detail of the revenue by geographknl mnrket is as | follows:

Thousands of euros - 7___7_;7 o _ﬁ *20_1]_ e 2016 i ]
United Kingdom 315,000 6
Total operating revenue 315,000 6

The operating revenue in 2017 is due to the dividend paid by Hubco Netherlands B.V. at December 2017 in exchange an
assignment of EUR 249 million of the intercompany loan with Ferrofin, and the amount of EUR 66 million of cash.

3. Personnel expenses
The breakdown of personnel expenses for 2017 und 2016 ls as follows

(Thousandsofewos o 200 2016
Wagesandsalafes (8_2_) L ) _lB_l)
Social Security (26) 25)
_‘l_'QTAL N o . L (108) (106)

The number of employees at 31 December 2017 and 2016, by professional category and gender, is shown in the
following table:

I oo3uepow T T T TTamme
(T Mee 4 Womgn 3 Total Y Men | Women i Total” i
Clerical staff - 1 1 -1 1
Qualified professionals = 1 - 1 1 . 1
Operational staff - - - - - -
TOTAL ] 1 1 2 1 1 2
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4. Other operating expenses
The breakdown of other operating expenses at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

Thousands of euros o j 207 2016
Services pfovided by Ferrovial Group companies {1,178} {1,306)
Independent professional sesvices 17) 125)
Trovelexpenses =~ = - n
TOTAL ' (1,295) ,438)

Operating expenses incurred during 2017 and 2016 mainly relates to bidding support expenses invoiced by Ferrovial
Aeropuertos Espafia S.A.

S. Net finance income/(cost)

The breakdown of financial income is as follows:

Thousands of euros o - 2007 7 2016

Finance (cost)/income to/from Ferrovial Group companies {1,339 1,174
HE__n;hunge differences and others L 9,491 (4,282)
Financeincome/lloss) 8,152 3,108)

Finance cost to Ferrovial Group companies primarily includes interest paid on the loan granted by Ferrofin for the
acquisition of Transchile, which has been repaid in Dec 2017, and on several loans issued to other Group companies since
2014,

The exchange differences mainty relates to the loans in American dollars from Ferrofin, S.L.

6. Taxation

‘Thousands of euros - ‘[ngou i. 2016
‘Curvrentyea}w - » {(1,675) 1,149
Corporation tax S (1,675) 1,169
Deferredtox N -
Totalincome tax ‘ (1,675) 1,149

Since the Company forms part of the tax group headed by Ferrovial International Ltd. in Spain, the corporation tax is
calculated with the Spanish jurisdiction tax rate at 25 per cent.

‘Thousandsofeuros . . 00 2016 |
Profit/(loss) before tax 321,749 (4,646)
Spain’s corporation tax rate 25% 25%
Tax at the Spain’s corporation tax rate {80,437) 1,162
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 12 (13)
_Tax effect of dividends that are not taxable under double tax treaties 78,750

_Income tax for theyear _ o ) (1,675) 1,149
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Years open to tax inspection

In accordance with current legislation, taxes cannot be considered definitive until they have been inspected and agreed by
the tax authorities or until the four-year inspection period has elapsed. At 31 December 2017, the Company was opened
to inspection by the tax authorities for all applicable taxes since its incorporation. The Company's Directors consider that
the tax returns for the aforementioned taxes have been filed correctly and, therefore, even in the event of discrepancies in
the interpretation of current tax legislation in relation to the tax treatment afforded to certain transactions, any potential
{iabllities that could arise would not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements.

7. lnvestments in subsidiary undertakings

The breakdown of non-current investments in Group companies and associates at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016 is as follows:

‘Related undertaki ; ! ¥ " Portfolio
@ own:If.s'hlp 1 ;‘;‘;2';;;:; Addltions Tmnsfors \  provisions at 381‘;11;"/;;:;
' Thousands of euros T 5 : i 3171272017 -,
Hubco Netherlands B.V. 100% 782,933 - - - 782 933
Ferrovial Transco Chile Spa 6% 69153 = (69153 - _ -
Ferrovial Airports Denver UKLtd.  100% 3,728 4,303 - - 8,031
Ferrovial Transco Internationat 100% - 13.964 69,153 ) 83113
UKLTD
Total 855,814 18,267 - (4) 874,077

Refer to note 25 of the Consolidated Financial Statements in these accounts for the full disclosure related to subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates.

After the restructuring process undertaken at the end of 2017, Ferrovial Alrports International Ltd. acquired the 100% of
Ferravial Transco International UK, LTD, which owns 100% of Ferrovial Transco Chile Spa.

In 2017, capital contributions were made to Ferrovial Airports Denver UK Ltd. amounting to EUR 4,304 million, in order
to finance the New Great Hall project of Denver International Airport, in which Ferrovial Airports heads the consortium
selected as the preferred bidder for remodelling the Jeppesen Terminat and negotiation of the contract for the award of
the commercial zone.

8. Amounts due from Ferrovial Group companies

The breakdown of amounts due from Ferrovial Group companies at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as
follows:

(‘l‘housundsofeuros e 2017 g _ 2016 o ‘ |
Ferrovial Group-current occounts 2,586 1,661
Loan to Ferroviat Group companies o B 21969 -

Amounts due from Ferrovial Group companies 254,555 1,661

The Company’s borrowings with Group companies increased to EUR 254.6 million. The malin driver of thisincrease is the
assignment of the intercompany loan with Ferrofin, in exchange for part of the distribution recetved by Hubco
Netherlands B.V.
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9. Borrowings from Ferrovial Group companies
The breakdown of Borrowings from Ferrovial Group at 31 Decembef 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

El’housands of euros S ) 2017 ;i 2016 ]
Ferrovial Group-loon - 77 582
Ferrovfgl_ G_rt_xig-cgrrent account o 3,396 285
Total Cmrent B_ofrowlngs 3,396 B 77,867

The Company’s borrowings decreased to EUR 3.4 million, the main driver of this decrease is the repayment in Dec 2017
of the intercompany loan with Ferrofin for the acquisition of Transchile.

10. Trade and other payables
The breakdown of trade and other poyobles at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

Thousands of euros o 7 o o ef 2017 z 2016 }
Trade creditors R 15
Payubles to Ferrovial Group companies o 1184 1306
VAT payable i} L 8 8
_Total trade and other payables ) ) 1,212 1,329

Payables to Ferrovial Group incurred during 2017 have been EUR 1,184 thousand, entirely invoiced by Ferrovial
Aeropuertos Espafia S.A. due to the bidding support.

11. Shareholders’ equity
Details of shoreholders equity at 31 December 2017isas follows

r T " Balanceat Movement " Balanceat
'Thousandsofewos 31/172006 .= . 311272017
Sharecapltal 158,793 2,274 161,067
Share premium - 624,139 20465 644,604
Retaining earnings and other reserves (3,484)__ B 320, 521 317 037
TOTAL — 779,448 313260 1122708

The Company was incorporated inltially with a share capitat of EUR 1 In June 2015. Subsequently, it issued a further
158,793,269 shares at a premium of EUR 1,429,139 thousand to its parent Ferrovial Internationat Limited in exchange for
equity interests in the subsidiaries which now form the Group.

At 27 July 2017, the Company issued 422,703 ordinary shases of EUR 1 at a premium of EUR 3,827 thousand ta its sole
shareholder Ferrovial International Limited. The payment was made by the transfer of USD 4,960 thousand.

At 3 November 2017, the Company issued 1,848,594 ordinary shares of EUR 1 at a premium of EUR 16,637 thousand to its
sole shareholder Ferrovial International Limited in exchanged for the equity interest in Fercovial Transco Esparia S.A.U.

12. Contingent liabilities
., The Company does not have any contingent liabilities in the current year or prior year.
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13. Note to the cash flow statement
A reconciliation of the Company’s profits and cash flow on operations is as follows:

o e et e e e - ——

(Thousandsofewos 200 2016
Net profit 320,074 (3,497
Adjustments for o —

Tax . 1675 (1,149)

____ Finance lcostl/ income -, _ 823,152) 3,108
Distributions received 66,428 -
Changes in accounts receivable, accounts payables and inventories (309 1,024

_Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities L _ . t4ne (514

The table below details changes in the Company’s labilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, dassxfled in the Group s consolidoted cosh ﬂow stntement as cosh flows from ﬁnoncmg activities.

— — [

Flnanclng ‘T Non-cnsh changes

-

' Thousands of euros © 2016 ' cash Exchnngo Interest 2017
y flows Jdlfferences accuals
Borrowings from Fertovkxl Group componies (note17) 77,867 (66,3560 (9,470} 1355 3,39
Total liabilities from financing activities 77,867 (66,356)  (9,470) 1355 3,396

14, Related party transactions

The detail of balances with companies of the Ferrovial Group and associates at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as
follows:

— ,ri, S - )

¢ - ’ o >

| , 2017 " Operating - Finance income/
f‘l‘bouwnds of euros _ ) Amountsduf m o Puyob('s; ‘ Etpeqsosg ; ~ leost) '
Ferovial SA.-Coporate w9 - 6 - -
FerrofinS.L. 251,969 3,157 =
Ferrovial Aeropuertos Espania S.A. - 225 1178 (1,178 [(0)]

Ferrovial International, LTO, 1,635 - - o 1
Ferrovial Aeropuestos Internaclonal, S.AU. - 14 L __;___——_—W_ -

Ferrovial Aeropuertos Chile ,.SPA 1 - - - -

Ferrovial Airports Denver UK Ltd. 1 _ - - - 52

Ferrovial Transco international UK Ltd. - - - - {4)

TOTAL 254,555 3,396 1,184 (1,178) (1,291
e e e *l' - Finance |
E : R . Amounts Recelvables: Bor rowlngs Payables O'pcratlng Opcfoting. income/
Thowangroraues e [ P PO Cocome” e G
Ferrovial, S.A. - Corporote - - 61 - - - (0)
FemofinSL. 5 - 77,582 . . - 1,139
Ferrovial Aeropuertos EspoﬁoSA - _ Y 224 1,306 6 {1,306 {0)
Ferrovial International, LTD. 1,634 - - - - =35
Ferrovial Airports Denver UK Ltd, - - - - - - 5D
TOTAL 1,659 1 77,867 1,306 6 (1,306) 1,123
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15. Information on the ultimate parent _

The ultimate parent of Ferrovial Airports International Ltd. Is Ferrovial, S.A,, whose corporate headquarters are in Spain,
Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Ferrovial, S.A, can be obtained from:

Ferrovial, S.A.

Registered office:

Principe de Vergara, 135

28002 Madrid
Spain
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